R. C. Jain & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

LLP No.AAG-T098

6:22-624, The Corporate Centre, Nirmal Lifestyle, LBS Marg, Mulund (West), Mumbai - 400 080.
Tel. : +91-22-2562 8290 /91 / 6770 0107 E-mail ; info{@rcjainca.com

Independent auditors report
To the members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Limited

1. Report on the audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements

We were engaged to audit the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of D. 5. Kulkarni
Developers Limited (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement
of profit and loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Management's responsibility for the standalone Ind AS financial statements

D. 8. Kulkarni Developers Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code (the Code). Its affairs, business and assets are being managed by the Resolution
Professional appointed by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai vide its Order dated 26th September 2019 under
the provisions of the Code as Interim Resolution Professional and subsequently as per section 22 of the
Code as Resolution Professional of D. 5. Kulkamni Developers Limited. The matter against the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process is pending for admission before the Hon'ble NCLT vide CP 1633/2019.
Under provisions of section 17 of the Code, the powers of Board of Directors of D. 5. Kulkarni
Developers Limited are currently under suspension and the same are being exercised by the Resolution
Professional of 1. 8. Kulkarni Developers Limited.

In view of ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Resolution Professional is responsible
for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind A5 financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

CIIor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
poing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
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operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Under section 20 of Code, it is incumbent upon
Resolution Professional to manage the operations of the Company as a going concern and the financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

The written representations with regard to these financial statements provided to us during the course of
our audit, have been signed by the Resolution Professional appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT Mumbai vide
its Order dated 26™ September, 2019.

3. Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

The Financial Statements provided to us for review have been signed only by the RP. Section 134(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 requires such signature to be undertaken by (a)the chairperson of the company
where he is authorized by the board, or by two directors out of which one shall be managing director; and
(b) the chief executive officer, the Chief Financial officer and the. Company Secretary, wherever they are
appointed. Since the CIRP has been initiated, the RP, pursuant to his appointment, has been vested with
the management of the Company and the powers of the board of directors of the Company stand
suspended. Therefore, the Financial Statements have been signed by the RP alone. Though the powers of
the Board of directors are Suspended, none of such directors of the Company were available/ agreeable
to sign the said Financial Statements.

The positions of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, as on the date of
Signing of the Financial Statements, were vacant. We understand that the office of the Chief Finance
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company is vacant before the start of the year under audit. The
Company has not appointed such key managerial personnel as required under section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointments and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, As such, the Financial Statements may suffer from issues of accuracy,
veracity, sufficiency, completeness and reliability, as none of the key managerial personnel of the
Company other than RP has signed the Financial Statements.

For the purpose of this audit review, we have relied upon the Financial Statements provided to us by the
RP. It is observed that the RP has inserted a note as part of notes to accounts, set out in Note 2.32 of
financial statements, as per which he has assumed that the data/information provided by the officials of
the Company and the records of the Company made available to him are in conformity with the
applicable laws and present a true and fair view of the position of the Company and has not personally
verified such information; and that he should be absolved from the accuracy, veracity and sufficiency or
completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company based on which the
Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared. As per the said note, the RP has signed the
financial statements only to facilitate the CIRP process without any liability of the same. To the extent to
which the RP has disclaimed his lLability with respect to accuracy, veracity, and sufficiency or
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completeness of information provided to him by the officials of the Company, the Financial Statements
may suffer from issues of accuracy, veracity, sufficiency, completeness or reliability. Relevant observations
upon the extent of veracity of the Financial Statements have been made in the below paragraphs.

Onr objectives are:

a  to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error

b. to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of the audit in accordance with SAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintained
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a. identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence
that is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in plakhe and the operating effectiveness of such controls

c. evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and relared disclosures made by management.

d. considered the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, we concluded that a material uncertainty does exist related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Hence, we
drew attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern or vice versa.

e. evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

f. communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identified during our audit.
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Because of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the financial statements.

4. Basis for disclaimer of opinion

(i) In view of irregularities and suspected fraudulent transactions and defaults under ‘Insolvency Bankruptcy
Code 2016’, the Company is under ‘Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process”. As at the date of this
report, we are not in receipt of any litigation/investigation reports conducted by investigative authorities.

(i) In view of the fact that matters relating to abovementioned financial irregularities are sub-judice and
litigations/investigations by respective authorities are yet to be completed, we are unable comment on the
consequential impact, if any, on the financial statements of the outcome of such litigations /investigations
/ enquiry by law enforcement agencies and outcome of related litigation and claims.

(iii) In view of the ongoing Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the outcome of which cannot be
presently ascertained on the matters listed below, we are unable to comment whether the Company will
be able to continue as a going concern. Consequently, we are unable to comment as to whether the going
concern basis for preparation of these financial statements taken by the Company is appropriate.

(iv) There are proceedings going on against the company under various laws such as The Maharashtra
Protection of Interest of Depositors Act (MPID), Economic Offences Wing (EOW) — Pune, Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and other economic laws. Various agencies have moved against the Assessee
Company and its directors, viz. Directorate of Enforcement (ED), Serious Fraud Investigation Office
(SFIO) and other agencies. The original documents/agreements has been seized by ED and are not
available for carrying out necessary audit.

(v) Other matters [including those listed in paragraph 4(iv) above], limitations with regard to availability of
necessary audit evidences including original documents and information, satisfactory explanations and
justifications required for audit for the years ended 31 March 2020. In view of the limitations and
uncertainties involved, we had expressed our inability to express an opinion on the financial statements
for the audited period. Our disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements is also because of the
possible effects of the above matters on the figures for the current year and on the corresponding figures
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

(vi) We are unable to comment on the necessary adjustments / disclosures in these financial statements in
relation to the following items, in view of non-availability of certain necessary information /
documentation / satisfactory explanations relevant to the current year audit -

(a) Lack of reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed (included under purchases of stock in trade)
with related sales; and

(b) Sale of few finished flats but not recognized due to non-availability of agreements for which the closing
stock shall show and inflated cost value;
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(c) Lease rental agreements for various land given on lease on which rental expenses are recognized for the
current year, are not provided and hence without sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to
comment on accuracy of rental expenses so recognized;

(d) Employee details / Salary register on which salary expenses are recognized for the current year, are not
provided and hence without sufficient appropriate audit evidence we are unable to comment on accuracy
of employee cost so recognized;

(¢) Bank statement/Interest statements of few Banks accounts/ Fixed deposits taken from the banks, that
were made available by the banking authorities have been accounted for, the rest were not completely
made available by the banking authorities inspite of many representations;

(f) Debenture statements and Loan statements from few banks based on which interest expenses have been
recognized were not made available, for which we have taken the base of previous year in case of Non-
Convertible debentures.

(g) Statutory liabilities due as at 31" Mar’ 2020 are verified based on the tally data maintained and provided by
the management. Various representations to Government authorities for the login credentials or data
available of the said company have been made, based on which the said recognition shall be verified for
its accuracy but the same was not available;

(h) Ledger confirmations from various parties which were available has been verified and accounted for; the
rest including related parties had not been made available based on which inter balances shall be verified;

(i) Original documents / agreements were not made available in most cases and hence we had to carry out
our audit procedures on the tally data provided and management representations. As explained to us by
the management, all the original documents had been seized by Directorate of Enforcement (ED).

() Report from EOW for its investigation done and report of forensic audit conducted have not been
provided to us based on which our opinion shall have a material impact.

(vii) Attention is drawn to Note 7 of the financial statements ie. unsecured loans to related parties where
provision has been made for bad and doubtful debts of Rs. 4,173.84 Lakhs, out of Rs. 6,959 Lakhs which
are loans given to subsidiary company, M/s. DSK Developers Corporation. Out of total 4,173.84 lakhs,
Rs. 229 Lakhs is doubtful Interest component. The basis of the provision of doubtful debts is not
provided to us.

(viii)As part of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, the Company has received certain claims
aggregating to Rs. 2,79,561 lakhs till 27" March 2020 from certain vendors and customers. As informed to
us by the management, the Company has terminated most of the contracts with the said customers /
vendors.

(ix) Attention is invited to note 9 of the financial statements wherein it is stated that Inventory is not
physically verified. We have relied on management for the figures provided in respect of inventory.
Current year changes in Work in Progress are not supported by any evidences except the data entered by
the management. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impact of the above on the financial
statements.
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(x) Trade receivables include receivables of Rs. 83 lakhs in respect of related party (Nikhil Kulkarni & Co.)
for the purpose of sale of assets which is outstanding since March 2016. It also includes Vat receivable
from Flat holders of Rs. 219 Lakhs since long which is not backed by any evidences.

(xd) Attention is invited to note 6 of financial statements wherein Long-term investment in equity instruments
of subsidiaries amounts to Rs. 200 lakhs. The total amount of investment in subsidiary companies
amounting to Rs. 1909.73 lakhs has been provided for diminution of investments in previous years itself
which has not been backed by the explanation and hence, we are unable to comment on the
completeness, existence and accuracy of this amount.

(xii) The Company needs to strengthen its internal control systems, in particular its IT controls and those
relating to existence of contract work-in-progress; reconciliation of consumables and spares consumed
with related sales; accounts receivables including periodic reconciliations with customers, age wise analysis
and application of receipts from customers; physical verification of inventories; accounts payables
including vendor selection process and periodic reconciliations with vendors; classification of costs
relating to items of purchase of traded goods including costs incurred towards warranty and certain
contract expenses; and disposal of property, plant and equipment. We are unable to determine
consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on these financial statements.

(xiii) Attention is drawn to the Note 12 of the Financial Statements wherein the advances made to the relatives
and third parties are doubtful in nature. The same has been recorded based on the accounting and books
maintained by the management.

(xiv)Attention is invited to Note 15 of financial statements wherein various Project Loans, Corporate Loans,
Vehicle Loans and other loans have been verified by the statements as much were provided to us by the
management. Since the statements for Debentures loans were not available or provided to us, the amount
outstanding has been derived by recording the similar amount of accrued interest expense as that of
previous yeat.

(xv) As per the provisions of Sec 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, post the transfer of dividend declared to an
unpaid dividend account, if still remains unpaid for a period of 7 years from the date of such transfer shall
then be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund and the company shall send a statement
of the details of such transfer to the authority which administers the said Fund. Attention is invited to
Note 23 of financial statement wherein the unclaimed dividend outstanding in the books of company
comprises from the FY 2009-10 dll FY 2014-15.

(xvi)Varous representations and reminders have been made to government authorities for the login
credentials or the data available with themselves pertaining to the Company. Since the required data was
not available to us, the statutory compliances and dues outstanding have not been verified to its accuracy.
We are unable to determine consequential impact, if any, of these aforesaid weaknesses on these financial
statements. Whereas the dues accounted for the period from 1" April 2019 to 31" March’ 2020 has been
duly verified. The dues recorded were fully paid to the government upto the date of Financials except the
following:
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Nature of the | Name of the Party | Amount of | Amount of TDS | Reason for
expense expense deducted non-deposit
Interest on Non- | NCD Holders Rs. 14,84,13,636/- | Rs. 1,48,41,364/- | Deducted based
convertible on last year but
debentures no confirmation
from the NCD
Holders
Professional Fees BSE Limited Rs. 4,37,500/- Rs. 43,750/ - Due to receipt

of bill after the
balance sheet

date
Professional Fees Mational Securites | Rs. 1,81,038/- Rs. 18,104/ Due to receipt
Depaository Limited of bill after the
balance sheet

date

(xvii)  Contingent Liabilities disclosed under Note 23 have been continued to be similar as that of previous
year. In addition to the same, Cenvat Credit availed in non-current assets and income tax dues as
extracted from the claims made by the authority has been disclosed as a contingent liability as there is a
contingency and estimated value needs to be recorded.

(xvi) The Company has not complied with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 that are as follows:

(a) Failed to file its financial results for the periods ended 30 September 2017 and subsequent periods till

date.
(b) Governance report have been submitted latest till Dec’ 17.
(¢) Annual reports have been timely submitted only upto FY 2015-16.

Consequently, we are unable to comment on the impact, if any, of this non-compliance on the financial

statements.

In view of our observations in paras 4(i) to 4(xv) above, we are unable to determine the adjustments, that
are necessary in respect of the Company’s assets, liabilities as on balance sheet date, income and expenses
for the year, the elements making up the statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement and
related presentation and disclosures in the financial statements.

5, Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we
have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the standalone financial statements.
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(1)

(a)

Material uncertainty related to " going concern"

We invite attention to ‘Annexure A’ to our report which expatiates the facts and circumstances that
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Having regard to the totality of the facts and circumstances stated in the said
Annexure, it is our considered opinion that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern only
if it is able to raise funds for payment of staff salaries, payment of statutory liabilities and for servicing its
debts on the due date and if it is able to comply with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act,
2016. Qur opinion about the financial statements for the year under review is not modified in respect of
this matter,

Key Audit Martters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters listed in *Annexure B’ to this report have been
communicated to the management and discussed with the management.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor s Report) Order, 2016 (the Order), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub- section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and except for the effects, if
any, of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we enclose in the
“Annexure C”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were unable to obtain all the information

and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

(b) due to the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we

are unable to state whether proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the cash flow statement and the statement of changes

in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account as maintained;

(d) due to the effect of the related matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we state

®

as below-
the financial statements do not comply with IND AS 8, IND AS 16, IND AS 17 and IND AS 113 as
specified under Section 133 of the Act;

Continuation Sheet.....
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(i) we are unable to state whether the financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(other than those referred to in paragraph 6(ii)(d)(i) above) specified under Section 133 of the Act;

(¢) the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above may have an adverse effect
on the functioning of the Company;

(f) the basis of written representations to be received from the directors as on 31 March 2020, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors that none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act except that the then Managing

Director (no longer with the Company), has not provided such representation to the Company,
Accordingly, we are unable to comment as to whether the aforesaid individual was disqualified as on 31

March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(2) the reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph above;

(h) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure D', and

(i) with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion, we are unable to
state whether note 23 to the standalone financial statements discloses the complete impact of pending
litigations on the financial position in the standalone financial statements of the Company;

i view of the related matters described in paragraph 4, basis for disclaimer of opinion, we are unable 1o
state whether the Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term contracts (the Company does not have any
derivative contracts); and

iii. there has been delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For R C Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRIN: 103952W /W100156

9
Meera Joisher
(Partner)

Membership No. 115080
Date: 10" Ocr, 2020

Unm:lc}nSb?ﬁOﬁﬂHﬂHHHEq
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
Annexure A - Material uncertainty related to "going concern"

The Directors' Responsibility Statement in the Board's Report states that the accounts have been prepared on
a "going concem" basis. However, whether the Company is a "going concern” as at the balance sheet date is a
question of opinion which must be answered having regard to the totality of the facts and circumstances of the
case. Accordingly, we state below the facts and circumstances which may have a material impact on this issue.

A. Financial facts & circumstances
1. Default in repayment of instalments of loans obtained from banks & financial institutions and in

payment of interest on such loans:

During the year under review, the Company has been generally unable to service the loans obtained from
banks & financial institutions in accordance with the contractual terms contained in the sanction letters
issued by such banks & financial institutions ie. the Company has been generally unable to repay
instalments and pay interest on the due date. We wrote a letter to each bank / financial institution in order
to obtain information about delay in payment of interest & repayment of loan instalment, status of the
account as at the balance sheet date & the overdue instalments / interest as at the balance sheet date. The
amount of overdue instalments / interest as stated in the Annexure C to the statutory audit report is
derived from the replies we received from the banks / financial institutions, if any, or, in the absence of
such replies, from the information available in the Company's records.

2. Default in repayment of fixed deposits obtained from the public and in payment of interest
thereon:
The Company has defaulted in repayment of fixed deposits and in payment of interest thereon. Please refer
Para (v) of Annexure C to our statutory audit report for details.

3. Default in payment of statutory dues on account of tax deducted at source, self-assessment tax,
Maharashtra Value-added tax, service tax, employees' provident fund dues etc.:

The Company filed its return of income under the Income Tax Act for Assessment Year 2016-17 (FY
2015-16) on 30/11/2016. As per the said return, an amount of Rs.1251.68 lacs are payable by the Company
on account of self-assessment tax and interest. However, till the date of this report the Company has paid
Rs. 45 lacs only and the balance Rs.1206.68 lacs are still unpaid. The Income Tax Department has treated
the said return as invalid u/s 139(9) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, on the ground that self-assessment tax
has not been paid and has asked the Company to show cause why prosecution should not be initiated for
such default.

The Company has not paid as required by law the tax deducted at source for the previous years except for
the year under review under various sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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The Company has also not paid as required by law the amounts payable on account of service tax,
employees' provident fund dues, ESIC dues, employees' profession tax, Maharashtra Value added tax, and
contribution to gratuity fund managed by LIC.

The details of these statutory liabilities are stated in Annexure C to our statutory audit report.

4. Dishonour of cheques issued by the Company and consequent criminal cases against the
Company under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act

Based on the information available from previous year, we are informed that during the previous year under
review, 1,220 cheques issued by the Company were returned unpaid for want of adequate balance in the
Company's accounts. The aggregate amount of such cheques is Rs.70.14 crores. Out of the 1220 cases of
dishonour, complaints u/s 138, NIA 1938 weze filed in 51 cases of which the aggregate amount is Rs.11.41
crores. The Company subsequently paid Rs. 21.04 crores against some dishonoured cheques before or after

filing of complaints.

5. Rejection of dividend proposed by the Board of Directors for FY 2015-16 at the Company's Annual
General Meeting:

When the Company's financial statements for FY 2015-16 were finalized in May 2016, the Board of
Directors recommended to the Annual General Meeting to be held in September 2016 that a dividend of
Re. 1.25 per share be paid to the holders of the Company's equity shares. The total outflow on account of
dividend and additional tax thereon would have been Rs. 388.17 lakhs. However, the resclution at the
Company's Annual General Meeting held on 29/09/2016 was not passed and the proposed dividend was
not declared.

6. Delay in payment of salaries to staff:

As at the date of this report, the Company has been unable to pay some of its staff for full year in addition
to four months of previous year. The unpaid employee remuneration as at the balance sheet date is Rs.
557.67 lakhs.

B. Other facts & circumstances
7. Resignation of staff and delay in appointment of replacements:

According to the statistics provided by the HR Department for previous year, the Company had 514
employees on 01/04/2016. During the FY 2016-17, 259 employees resigned whereas only 54 new
employees joined the Company. Consequently, the Company had 309 employees as at 31/03/2017. No
new data of the current employees available to us.

8. Progress of incomplete construction projects

Relying on the management representations, the construction activity in all the major construction sites in
and around Pune had slowed down considerably.
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9. Rating by credit rating agency

The credit rating of the Company has been down-graded by CARE from BBB+ to D in respect of long-
term bank facilities and to C Negative in respect of Fixed Deposit Programme and to C Negative in respect
of non-convertible debentures as per their communications dated 22/03/2017.

10. Pending litigations

The Company and its promoters face and are likely to face litigations on account of dishonour of cheques
and defaults in payment of statutory dues, fixed deposits, bank loans and generally dues payable to

suppliers,

11. Non Maintenance of Records

The company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets,

12. No Documentary Evidence

No documentary evidence was provided as to the details of the periodicity and extent of physical
verification of Fixed Assets carried out by the management. Accordingly, we are unable to comment
whether there are any material discrepancies and on the manner in which they have been dealt with in the

books of account.
13. No Evidence for Physical Verification

There is no evidence of physical verification by management of inventories available on record. Hence we
are unable to comment on the reasonability of verification process and also on the discrepancies, if any.
The land valuation report provided to us is for the year 2016 and it does not match with the workings
provided to us regarding the area and value of land held as inventory.
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Independent Auditors' Report of Even Date
To the Members of D. 8. Kulkarni Developers Lid.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements
Annexure B - Key Audit Matters

The fulluwi.t:g key audit matters are emphasized in order to interpret these financial statements
1. Compliance with the provisions of the Real Estate Regulation Act, 2016

Government of India has enacted the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act 2016 and all the
sections of the Act came into force with effect from May 1, 2017. Under this Act, Government of
Maharashtra has established Maharashtra Real Estate Regulatory Authority (Maha RERA), vide
Notification No. 23 dated 8th March 2017, for regulation and promotion of real estate sector in the
State of Maharashtra. Consequently, Government of Maharashtra also promulgated the Maharashtra
Real Estate (Regulation and Development) (Registration of Real Estate Projects, Registration of Real
Estate Agents, Rates of Interest and Disclosures on Website) Rules, 2017 and other Rules. The last date
for registration of on-going projects under Real Estate Regulation Act was 31st July 2017. These
changes in the regulatory environment applicable to real estate development companies are so radical
that no such company can continue in business without complying with the new regulations.

2. Commitments for DSK Dream City Project & Other Projects

The Company has made commitments in respect of its on-going projects. The Company's success will
depend upon its ability to raise funds for meeting these commitments.

3. Requirements of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has been facing capacity issues due to loss of key employees while meeting the need for
servicing information requirements and providing clarifications to multiple investigating agencies,
providing information to enable the ongoing asset monetization and restructuring activities and meeting
‘going concern’ requirements. Further, financials statements from the respective subsidiaries have not
been available to us. On further investigation, it was found that out of 4 subsidiaries being DSK
Developers Corporation, DSK Woods LLC, DSK Southern Projects Pvt Ltd & DSK Infra Pyt Led, 2
domestic subsidiaries have complied with annual fillings with Registrar of Companies upto 31* March
2016. In view of the above, the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries have not been available or shall
not be available before the Annual General meeting of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is
unable to provide its Consolidated Financial Statement and salient features of the Financial
Statements of the Company’s Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures in Form AOC-1 as required under
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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4. Advances given to unrelated parties

During the year, the Company has given advances aggregating to Rs. 0.38 lakhs to unrelated partes for
the purpose of construction & development of real estate projects. However, by the balance sheet date
the said partics had not raised invaices for the work performed by them,

5. Default committed by DSK Global Education & Research Lid. (DSEGER)

The Company is surety for the loan advanced by Central Bank of India (CBI) to DSKGER. The said
guarantee was given when DSKGER was a subsidiary of the Company and it continued even after
DSKGER ceased to be a subsidiary, The said contingent liability appears in Note 23 to the financial
statements. On 12/04/2017, CBI has issued a notice to DSKGER u/s 13(2) of the Securitisation &
Reconstruction of Financial Assets & Enforcement of Secunity Interest Act, 2002, for payment of the
amount outstanding on 11/04/2017 ie Rs. 8200.39 lacs within 60 days from the date of receipt of
notice which remains unpaid tll date.

6. Possible contractual liability

The Company is unable to reasonably quantify the possible liability that may arise due to non-

performance of the terms of contracts berween the Company and its customers & suppliers.
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements

Annexure C Referred to in Paragraph (i) under the heading "Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements" of Our Report of Even Date

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of section 143(11) of Companies Act, 2013, we enclose, on the basis of our opinion,
our examination on the relevant records and according to the information and explanation given to
us, in the “Annexure C” a statement on the matters specified in Paragraph 3 & 4 of the said Order.

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets during the financial year under review.

b) The Resolution Professional has physically verified all the fixed assets during the financial
year 2019-20 for the Valuation of Assets under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016. As informed to us, material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and the
same have been dealt with in the books of account.

c) As per the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable
properties owned by the Company whether held in the name of the company or not is
uncertain since the same has been sealed by the ED.

(ii) Inventory

The Resolution Professional appointed by the NCLT order has done Physical Verification of
inventory during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process. The projects for which they are
not aware about its presence, are being carried forward in the books as Work in Progress.

(iii) Loan granted to related parties

a) Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of disclaimer of opinion
paragraph 4 of our main report, the Company has not granted any fresh loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained u/s
189 of the Act. The amount of loan granted in previous stand to be outstanding till the
balance sheet date as follows:

Number of parties Amount of loans given
Balances (‘Lacs)

31-03-2020 31-03-2019

Twao 12,249.08 12,249.08

CCRTRTE
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b) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions of loans, secured or unsecured,
granted by the Company, are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company;

c¢) In respect of the loans, secured or unsecured, given by the Company, the terms of
repayments of the principal amount and the payments of the interest have not been
stipulated. Hence whether the repayment is overdue or not cannot be decided. However,
the Company had made provision of Rs. 4,713.84 Lacs in the previous years for
loans whose recovery may be doubtful.

(iv) Compliance with section 185 & 186

a) The Company has not made investments, granted loans, offered guarantee and security in
compliance with the provisions of Section 185 & Section 186 of CA, 2013. The limit
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 for granting loans has been exceeded thereby
violating the provisions of the Act.

b) The Company has obtained an opinion from a professional stating that provisions of
Section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 are not attracted in the matter of giving a
guarantee to the bank which has advanced a loan to one of the related parties viz. D.5.
Kulkarni & Co.

(v) Deposits

As at 31st March 2019 the Company had outstanding deposits of Rs. 27.37 crores. During the
FY 2019-20 and up to the date of this report, no. of depositors have not been increased also
the amount of deposit accepted have remained unchanged. However, no Order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.

(vi) Cost Records

The company has not maintained the cost as required by the Companies (Cost Record &
Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government u/s 148(1) of the Act. The
Company has also appointed a cost auditor. The last date for completion of cost audit is
28/09/2017.

(vii) Payment of statutory dues

a) There have been instances of delay in depositing with the approprate authorities
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, TDS,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it.

The details regarding payment of Rs. in Lacs
statutory dues are as follows:
Particulars Total dues as | Dues for

on 31/03/2020 | more than 6
months as
on
31/03/2020
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1. Tax deducted / collected at source 1,322.16 1,263.63
2. Service Tax 289.17 28917
3. Gratuity 216.34 216.34
4. Leave Encashment 63.94 63.94
5, Maharashtra Value-added tax 470.16 470,16
6. Provident Fund 87.37 87.37
7. Employees' State Insurance 11.23 11.23
8. Profession Tax 3.90 3.90
9, Goods and Service Tax 21.34 18.51

b) There are no disputed amounts outstanding in respect of Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax,
Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to it as at the last day of the Financial year. The disputed amounts in respect of income
tax are as follows:

Forum where dispute is pending | Assessment | As at 31" | As at 31¢
Year March® 20 March® 19
(Rs. in | (Rs. in
Lakhs) Lakhs)
1. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2004-05 67.25 67.25
2. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2005-06 152.02 152.02
3. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2006-07 311.45 311.45
4. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2007-08 418.80 418.80
5. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2008-09 116.00 116.00
6. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2009-10 156.93 156.93
7. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2010-11 00.95 99.95
8. High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2011-12 3547 35.47
9, High Court of Judicature, Mumbai | 2012-13 36.15 36.15

The ITAT Pune decided the Company's appeals for AY 2004-05, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-
08, 2008-09, 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12 & 2012-13 in favour of the Company. However,
the Dept has filed a reference with the High Court of Judicature at Mumbai.

¢) During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions of section 124(5) the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies (Declaration & Payment of Dividend)
Rules 2014, made thereunder. The unpaid dividend remains outstanding in the books
from FY 2009-10.

(viii) Default in repayment of bank loan

a) The Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to debenture holders as on the balance
sheet date and as on the date of this report. The Company has also delayed repayment of
dues to financial institutions and banks during the year. The details of overdue interest
and overdue principal of the Company's borrowings are as follows:
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Bank / Financial Institution Amount overdue as on 31/3/20
Interest Principal
(Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)

1. ICICI Housing Finance Co 441.19 8,044.5
2, State Bank of India 21.19 12,579.81
3. Syndicate Bank 809.24 7,667.00
4. Union Bank of India 2,804.99 6,292.86
5. Bank of Maharashtra 458.28 6,292.00
6. IDBI Bank 1755.90 4,723.66
7. India Bulls Housing Finance 823.91 5,666.35
8. Vijaya Bank 0.00 2,131.45
9. Sangli Urban Cooperative Bank Ltd. 0.00 205.69
10. The Kalyan Janata Sahakari Bank 140.35 1,336.72
11. Tata Capital Housing Finance Ltd 94.48 713.53
12. Bajaj Finance Ltd 202.13 1,403.31
13. Aditya Birla Finance Ltd 176.82 936.47
14. STCI Finance Ltd 640.51 2,689.45
15. HDFC Bank Ltd. 0.02 1.25
16. Toyota Financial Services 0.43 7.07
17. Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 0.00 0.58

(ix)  Application of proceeds of term loans / public offer
The company has applied the term loans obtained during the year towards the purpose for

which the loans were obtained. During the year under review, the Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

(x) Fraud

No material fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the financial
year under review,

(xi) Managerial remuneration

The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year. Hence the
contents of paragraph 3(xi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

(xii) Nidhi Company

The contents of Paragraph 3(xii) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since the Company is not
a Nidhi Company.

(xiii) Related party transactions & compliance with 5.177 & 188

For want of complete records, we are unable to comment about the transactions with related
parties and to express our opinion whether these transactions are in compliance with Sections
177 & 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the available details thereof have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv) Preferential allotment / private placement of shares or convertible debentures &
compliance with 5 42

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment/private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year.

(xv) Non-cash transactions with directors etc. & compliance with 5.192

Except for the effects of the matters described in the basis of the disclaimer of opinion
paragraph of the main report, according to the information available as at present and
explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company , the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him,

(xvi) Compliance with S.45IA of RBI Act
The contents of paragraph 3(xvi) of CARO, 2016 are not applicable since the company is not
requited to register itself with RBI under section 45IA of the RBI Act.

For R C Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRIN: 103952W /W100156

Mecka Joisher
(Partner)

Membership No. 115080 \\ &
Date: 10® Oct, 2020

*
upIN: 2611508 OARAAAMIIEY
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Independent Auditors' Report
To the Members of D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd.

On standalone Ind AS financial statements

Annexure D Referred to in Paragraph (b)(vi) under the heading "Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements" of Our Report of Even Date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of D. §. Kulkarni Developers
Ltd. (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
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financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and its operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed nsk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

¢) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ot timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements,
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were generally
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated i the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. However, by the end of the year the efficacy of the IFC system
was adversely affected because of resignation of staff responsible for operating the system and
delay in appointment of suitable replacements.

For R.C Jain & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 103952W /W100156

=/ e\
Joisher ﬁ'.": Ly P ‘:}
(Partner) RN ga}
Membership No. 115080 ..~ /
Date: 10 Ocr, 2020 ———

UDIN: 201) 502 OAAARAAM 1189



.5 KULEARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED
CIN ¢ LAS20PNI9H P LCO6330
Standualone Balanee Shect as at 35t March 2020

. As a3 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
o NotR et b B L) {Am. fn Re. Lakhs)
1 ASSETS
1 Mon-Current Assets
(3 Property, plant and equopaent i SIT57 1, (K158
(&) Investment propraty 1 2740 272401
{dy  Onhes Intngible assers 5 546 19.05
()  Femancil Asscos
) Invesments L1 28405 28495
u) Loans 7 TENL 14 THMLIE
(@ Other Mon-Curient issets # 134,33 122 80
Totul Non-Current Assets 12,4741 1254810
2 Current Assets
) Tventories L57,168.00 L5768
b Financal Assees
i} Trade Recenvables 10 2,663 4% 26188
i) Cash and Cash equavalenss i 3224 21885
iig)  Lomns 12 22280141 225774
Totul Curtent Asseis 182,152.53 LB2 335,47
Total Assets 1,54,599.95 19528717 |
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
fa) Share capieal 15 258010 2 54110
) Ouher cupiry 4 24, 256.71 X7.554.56
26,8383 30,014,566
LIABILITIES
1 Non-Current Liabilitics
fay  Fmancil kabiliees
¥ Bormings 15 TA 1203 208697
) Deferned tax lnbaditics (et i 42,64 AL68
fe}  Other non-current habnlies IT 25T 2457
TR, 545 73,2122
2 Current labilities
{a) Finamcial inbiises
1 Bomowmgs 18 10,305,927 TLSTE]
uy L payvables 12 546320 530784
iy Cither fmancisl hanleties -1 T L. 20 67, S5
(b} Cxher current habidies | 2113598 2052
fe) Provisins = 450724 450224
92,508,585 90,031.28
Total Equity and Lighilities 1,94 599,95 1,95,287.17
Contingent Liabilities not provided for el 35,204.15 35,204,535
Corporate information and statement of sccounting policies o

As per our bt repon of even date.
For B C Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: WK

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th O, 2020

o 2011508 OAAAAA M 1NET

[ The accrsmpanying notes are an avegral pare of these Arancial smremenis

For 1% Kullarni Destopers Limifed
(A coanpany usicler Corporate Insolve rT-;'HP rxcesd by
LT Oder dasdd 26th Septemibe Y

Y\

Mr. Manoj Agarwal
Hugpsitanom oo, TERBLATTA 000 T L
(T affuers, busmess and proporry™g TR rlopers
Lemited are bemg managed by the Hosilt ifessional who
st s aggend of the Company only without any personal Rebalice.)

Place: Mumbal
Drave: M0ch Cher, 2020




D, 5. KULEARNI DEVELOPLRS LIMITED

CIN ; LASZOIPMN 190 LCDR3340

Starecment of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3lste March, 2020

’ 3at March 20 Jlst March 192
P ulars ™
g P (Amt. in Rs. Lakhs) (Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)
1. Revenus from opertions ({Gmss) i z .
I, [Onher imcome 25 564 6T
Total Revenue (1 + 11} 5,64 649,17
IIl. |Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 0 291
Changes n mventorees of Funshed Goods, Work-m-Progress and ¥ {] -
Stock-in-Trade
|Employee benefizs expense 28 . 222
Oificed: admen expenses 29 79.44 75.54
Finance costs kI 271130 5.727.62
Depreciation and amortieation expenie 3 M2.73 500 5]
Corporate social responability expenses a2 . e
Total expenses 3,303.47 6,432,09
v Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (I- IV} (IL-1V)
' (3,297.83) (5,762.92)
V. Exceptional Items
V1. |Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI) (3,297.83) (5,782.92)
VII. |Tax expense:
Cazrrent tax
Adpstment of Depreciation on account of transitsonal provision of
Jthe Companses Act, 2013
Deferred tax
Total
VI Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII- (3,297.83) (5,752.92)
VLY
IX. |Profit/({loss) from discontinued operations
X |Tax expense of discontinwed operations
XI Profit/{loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI) (3,207.55) (5,782.92)
X1l |Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XI1) (3,297.53) (5.782.92)
XII. [Other Comprehensive Income

A (@) Trema that wall not be reclassificd w profic or boss

{a} Remeasusernent of Defined Benefit stheme

(1) Incomse tax relatmg o items that will not be reclassified w
profit or loss
(b} paana and lnsses fooim investments in cQuity InstrEments
designated at fair value through ather comprehensive income

(i} Income - relating o items that will not be rechissificd w
prodit of loss

Taotal

B0} Trems that will be reclasnbed 1o probt or boss

i) Income tax rekating oo dtems that wall be reclassefied 1o proht
or foss
Total




Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XII+XIV)

X1V, |(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income
fior the period) (3,297.83) {5, 782.92)
V. |Eamnings per equity share (for continning operation):
() [Basxc
(iip JDabuecd ¥
XVL |Eamings per equity share (for discontinned operation):
@ [Basic
(i) [Pubueed
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing
XVIL ook
operation):
() [Basic
(i)  JDubuted

The accompanying notes ane an mtegeal part of these financial starements.
Az per our audit report of even date,

For R C Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: W100156

Meeta Joisher

Partoer

Membership Mo, 115080

1:':‘“’_‘?

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th Ocr, 2020

LIMMN:

OAAAARTINE]

For DS Kulkarni Devlopers Limited

Lauted are being managed by the Resoluson peofessional who
act asagent of the Company only without any personal Liskalty )

Place: Mumbai
Drane: 10eh Oct, 2020




D. 5. Eulkami Developers Lud.
CIN: LA520IPN1991PLCOG63340

Srandalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
i Mer Profit before Tax & Extracrdinary ltems
Adpmitmoents o reconile PIT fo met dnd floeiz
i Diepeeciation
i Interest Expenditure
i Interest & Dividend Recerved

Rx

31-Muir-20

nlac

SIETS
it
5.64)

$-Mar-19]
Ry i1 Laca

3-Mar-19
Rs. m Lacs

31-Mar-20

Rs. in Lacs
(3.297.83) {5, 78290
599.51
4.242.92

{13.38) 4,829.05

1,730,351

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes
Warksinyg vl s tovests
i Increase {Decrense) in Short Term Borrowings
i Increase {Decrease) n Other Current Liabilitics
i1 Increase (Decrease) in Shoet Term Provisions
w Increase (Decrease) in Other Financial Linbeitics
v Increass (Deceease) in Trade Payables
vi (Increase) Decrease in Inventories
vii (Incresse) Decrease in Receivables
viil (Increass) Deerease in Shor term Loans & Advances
% (Increase) Deercase in Other nog-curreat asses

L]

{IH5B0)
fi1.96
5105
251882
7535

i3
(11.45)

(1,567.52) (953.57)

14315
{0.32)

4,710.42

308

16.26
{137

Cash generated from Operations
i Income Tax Paid

247218 487121

et Cash from Operating Acivities (A)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
i Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipmint
il (Increasch Decrease in Long teom Loans & Advances
i Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
e Sale of Investments
v Interest & Dividend Received

S

D066 3NT35

(610.13)

13.54

Met Cash used in Investing Activitics (B)

Cash Flow from Financing Activitics

i Interest Paid

it Inercase [Decrease) in Borrowings

il Increase (Decrease) m Othier long term liabilities

(122827
13

5.64 {596.75)

(4,242.97)
BOR. 16

Met Cash used in Financing Activitics (C)

Met increase /decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash & Cash Equivalent as at beginning of the year

Cash & Cash Equivalent as at end of the year

(3,34476)
(179.60) (24.16)
21885 24301
024 218.85

(1,082.90)

MNote 1o the Cash Flow Smtement: Cash and Cash Equivalents
include Cash and Bank Balances

Corporate information & statement of accounting policios

As per aur audit report of even date,
For R C Jain & Associstes
Chanered Accountants

Firm Registration No: W100156

<M. No.\T
3\115080/~

i
Membership No. 115080 '5"' ey

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th Oct, 2020

uoiy: 201) 503 OARAAR N 1N RY

The sccompanying notes are an incegral part of these financial smtements

For DS Kulkami Devlopers Limited
A company under Corporiic Injekrofiee]
ly MCLT Ownder dated 206th g

The affairs, busincss  ard  prope
Divlopers Limited are boing mannred by the Resolution
reefessicenal who act as agent of the Company only withoat
wy persomal habidity.)

Place: Mumbai
Doare: i0th Oet, 2020
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D. 5. Kulkami Developers Lad.
CIN: L4S201PN1991P LCOG3340
MNotes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the yoar ended 31 March 2020

1

2m

202

2,03

Corporate information
D. S. Kulkarni Developers Ltd. is 3 public compaay domiciled m India and is mcorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on two recogniscd stock exchanges in India ic BSE & NSE

Its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) i India. The Company is enpaged in the business of real
estate development in India.

An application for initiation of corporate insolvency resolution poicess (CIRIT) of D'S Kulkaret Devleopers Limited was
admitted by the Hon'ble National Company Law Teibunal, Mumbat vide order dated 26 September 2019 under the
Insolvency and Banknuptcy Code, 2016 (1BCY) and hence currently, Ricoh is under CIRP. Meo Manoj Agarwal (BB
registration number (IBBI/IPA-001/TP-POOTI4,/2017-18/ 1 1 222)  wus appointed as Interim Resolution  Professional
{'IRE") vide this order,

Aceordingly, the RP had beco managing the operations of the Company, as'a going concem, Hwiting, verting and
admitting the claims against the Company and managing/supir ssinge the operations of the Company as part of CIRP.

“I'he standalone financial statements are prepared for the yoar cnding 31st March 2020.
The IND AS financial statemints were approved by the Resulution Porfossional in absence of propery constitured Board
of Directors, whose powers cemain suspended during Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ({CIRPY).

Significant accounting policies

Date of adoption of Ind AS:

The net worth of DSKDL as per the audited standalone 19/5 as ar 31/03/2016 exceeds R« 500 cr. Hence, the dare of
adoprion of INI> AS for the Company & its subsidianes 1= 01 0472016 (Rule 4 (1)(i)) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.)

The company needs o prepare standalone financil statericnes following THI AS for the Company & its subsidiaries for
financial year ending 31/03/2020 (Rule 4 (9) of the Compani:s Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.)

Ind AS Financial Statements for FY 2019-20
The Ind AS financial statemients of the Company will be as fulliws:
i Balance shoer as at 31/03/2019 and 31/03/2020
it Profirand Loss Statement for the year ended 31/03/2011 and 31 /0%/2020
il Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 32019 and 31732020
iv Notes to Financial Statements

Ind AS which are not applicable to the Company:
i Ind AS 26 - Accounting & Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans: This Ind AS &2 not applicable since the
Company is niof in business of offering Retirement Benctit Pans

i Ind AS 29 - Financial Reporting in the Hyperinflanonary Economies: This Ind AS 1+ not applicable since the
Company docs not operate in Hyperinflationary Econoaies.
iii Ind AS # - Agriculture: This Ind AS i nor applicable <ince the Chmpany i# not engaged in agnculture,

iv Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payments: This Ind A% = not applicable since the Company has not entered into
contraces. which require share-based payments.

v Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations: This Tad AS i not applicable since the Company haz not entered into any
arrangements of the maiture of mergers & [ or demergers.

vi Tnd AS 104 - Insurance Contracts: This Ind AS is st applicable since the Company 15 not engaged in the business

of issuing INFUrance CONImees.

vii Ind AS 106 - Exploration & Evaluation of Mineral Resources: This Ind AS is not applicable since the Company is
not engaged in the business of explortion of mineral reources.
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Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments: This Ind AS i nor appheable since the Company engaged  only in one
sepment, namcely, real cstare development.

Ind AS 114 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts: This L A &= not applicable since the Company does not conduct
rate-regulated activines.

is of preparation

On Seprember 26, 2019 the Hon'ble Mational Company Faw Vrhunal (NCLT) had admirted the petition for initiating
the Corporate Insolvency Resolution (CIR) Progess under the provisions of the [nsolvency Bankruptey Code, 2016
{IBC). Under the CIR Process, a resolution plan is to be prepared and approved by the COC. Further the resolution
plan approved by the COC will also need NCLT approval. A the Company is under resolution process, the financul
statements have been presented on a “going concern” buis

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statcments which comply m all matenal respects with the relevant
provisions of the Act and with the Ind AS applicable foe perioals ending on 31s1 March 2019, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018.

These financial statements have been presented m accordance with the provisions of Division 11 of Schedule 11 1o
the Companies Act, 2013,

These financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention, unless required [/ permitted otherwise by
applicable lnd AS.

This is the first set of the Company’s standalone financial statements in which Ind A 115, Revenue from contracts
with customers, has been applied.

As required by Section 128(1) of the Act, thess financial «mements are prepared in accordance with the accrual
method of accounting with revenues recognized and Uxpenses accounted on their accrual including provisions [/
adjustments for committed obligations and smounts derermined a5 payable or recevable during the penod.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lidian AS requires the management to make judgements,
estimares and assumptions, that affect the application of sccounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets and
liubilities and disclosures of contingent lisbilines at the dute of the end of the reporting penods and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting periods. Although these estimates arc based on the management's
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncerrainty about these assumptions and csumates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the canying amounts of assets or liabilines in future penods. Acrual
results may differ from these cstimates. Extimates and underlying assumptions arce ceviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting cstimates are recognised in the voar in which the estimate s vevised,

“The smndalone financial statements are presented in INIL xnd all values are rounded to the nearest laes (TNE 00,000,
except when otherwise indicared.

205 Ind AS1 - Presentation of Financial Statements:

The identification of an entity’s significant accounting policics 13 an mportant aspeet of the financial statements. Ind
AS 1.117 requires disclosure of the significant accountmy; policics comprising

2 the measurcment basis {or bases) used in prepacng the financial statements and
b the other accounting policies wicd that are selevint (o an undesstandmg of the financial statements,

As required by Tnd AS 101 the Company has used the samc accounting policies in its opening Ind A5 balance sheet
and throughout all perods presented in it subsequent Ind AS financial statements (the fiest annual financial
statements in which an-entity adopts Ind AS by an explivit and unreserved statement of compliance with Ind AS).
Those accounting policies comply with each Ind AS eftecrve at the end of its first Ind AS reporting pedod, except as
specified in Ind AS 101 (e.g., when the exceptions in L A% 101 peohibir retrospective application or the Company
avails irself of onc of Ind AS 101 voluntary exemptionsi. The Company does not apply different versions of Ind A5
that were effective at carlier dates. ‘The Company may apply a new Ind AS that is not yet mandatory if that Ind AS

permits carly application.



iii Current versus non-current classification - Ind A5 1.60
a  The Company presents assets and labilities in the balance sheet based on current { non-cureent classification

b

An asset is reated as current when it is:
» Expecred to be nealised or intended o be widd or consumed in normal operaring cycle
¥ Held primarily for the purpose of trading
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, except work-in-progress of
real estate development projects.
P Cash or cash equivalent unless restricred from being exchanged or used to settle u Hability for ar least
rwelve months after the reporting period
All other assces are classified as non-cucrent.
A liability is treared a8 curent when:
» [t is expectéd to be sentled in normal aperatmy cyele
P 1t i held primanly for the purpose of tracding
P It is due to be settled within twelve moarhs afier the reporting period, or
B There is no unconditonal Aght w defer the serdement af the liability for at least pwelve months after
the reporting period

“T'he Company classifies all other liabilities as nou-current.

Dieferred tax assets and Habilities are classified a< non-current assets and labilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assers for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identificd 3-5 years as its operating cycle.

206 Ind AS 2 - Inventorics
i Inventoses to be valued at the lower of cost and act realialle value.

ii Costs incurred in construction of each project sre accouniied for a< follows:

a

c

Construction materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the ventones
tor their present location and condition. Cost 1s detemiined on st in, first out basis.

Finished tenements and work in progress: cost inclisdes cost of direct marerials and hbour and u
proportion of overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Cost i derermaned on fiest in, first out basis,

Traded goods: cost includes cost of puechase and other coses incurced in brmgnng the inventones to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighred average basts,

Imitial cost of inventorics includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCL
in respect of the purchases of raw materials,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the oadmary course of business, less estsmared costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the company has valued the imemaornies at Cost complying with the requirements of
INDAS2

207 Ind AS 7 - Cash and cash equivalents

i Ind AS 7.18 allows entities t report cash flows from operanng activities using either direct method or indirect
method. The regulation 34(2)(c ) of Chapee IV of Sceuanes & Fxchange Board of India (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requitements) Regulations, 2015, requires heted compimes to present cash fow From aperating activities
only under indicect method. The Company presents its cash Hows wsing inudirect method

Certain working capital adjustments and other adjstienss inchuded in the accompanyuy- statement of cash flows
ecflect the change in balances berween 31,/0372019 and 31 /0322020

i The Company has reconciled profit before fax to net cash Hows from aperating activincs. | lowever, reconciliation of

profir after tax i also aceeptable under Ind AS 7.

Cash and cash cquivalent in the balance sheet comprise csh at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subjoot (o an wsignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cath and cash equivalents consist of eash and shoet-teem
deposits, as defined above, net of vustanding bank verdmfts as they are consdered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.
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AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estmates and Ereors
Company's Profit & Loss Starement presents profit [ Joss from ordinary acrivities. ‘The extea-ordinary or exceptional

items or changes in accounting estimates and policies durng the yor under review are disclosed separately as per Ind AS

.
207 Ind

AS 10 - Events after Reporting period

i These financial statements consider approprately the anpact of events which occur after the ceporting period but

before the financial statements are approved and which have an effect on the balanee sheet and profit and loss
statcment.

i The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions 1o equity holders of the parent when the

w

210 Ind
i
i

distribution is authorised and the distribution i no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws
in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shascholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
dircetly in equity,

Mon-cazh distetbutions are mcasured ar the Fair value of the asscrs to be distabuted with for value ce-measurement
recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference booween the carrying amount of the [ability and the carcying
amount of the assets distributed i recopnised in the statanent of profit and loss:

AS 12 - Income taxes
Tax expense comprises eurrent and deferred fax.

| Current income tax assets and Labilities are measueed at the amount expected to be recovered from or pad to the

raxation authorities. The tix rotes and wx laws usad 0 compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the repornng date in the counmics whore the Company operates and generates raxable
income.

Deferred tax i pfm-idcd us'lﬂg the ﬁq!m]irjr micthesd o pemponany differences between the mx bases of assets and
liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Dieferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused rax losses. Deferred tax assets are o be reeogniscd o the extent thar it is prabable that taxable profic will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax eredits and
unused tax losses can be utilized

The Company has not recognised any deferred tax usset/ liability in addition to last year as the Company is
making losses and probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets o on incurring expenses

v

¥i

Expenses and assers are recognised net of the amount o1 ales/ value added taxes paid, excepr:

B When the mx ncurred on @ purchase of assets or seevices fs ot recoverble from the txation authority, i which
case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acsuisiion of the asset or as part of the expense wem, as
applicable

B When recevables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable o, 1he mxiion authority i tacluded as part of recenvables of
payables in the balance sheet.

211 Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment

i

Under the proviows GAAP (Indian GAAP), PPE weee carried in the balanee sheet ar cost of acquisition less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impainment lisscs, if any. In exercise of the option vested in the
Company as per Para 29 of Ind AS 16, the Company has chosen the cost model as per Para 30 of Ind AS 16
for all items of PPE. Accordingly, the Company bas not revalued the PPE at 1st April 2015.

Unider the Ind AS compliant Schedule T11, land and buildmyg are presented as two separate classes of PPE. In contrast,
paragraph 37 of Ind AS 16 appears to be having flexitiliy o reear land and building cither as one class or as two
separate classes. 1t also stares that a dass of PPE is o jrouping uof assets of a similir narure and use in an entity’s
opertions, However, in accordance with Para 58 of lud AS 16 and based on the nature, charcteristics and
risks of land and building, the management has deiermined that they constitute two separate classes of
property for presentation in the financial statements.
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The Company has recognieed items of property, plant & cquipment (PPE) in gecordance with Ind AS 16.07 only if it
is prubable that furere cconomic bencfits associared wirh the itam will flow to the catity and if the cost of acquisition
v comstruction of the items of PPE. can be measured relably in accordance with Ind AS 16 10-16:27.

The cost of PPE items mchudes the cost of replacing pant of the plant and equipment if the recognition crites are
met. When significant parts of plant and equipment e required o be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their speeific useful lives.

When a major inspection is pecformed, its cost is recopnisad in the carcying amount of the plant and equipment as 3
replacernent if the recognition criteria are sarisficd.

The present value of the expected cost for the decammsioning of an asset after its use is included mn the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision arc met.

As reuired by Schedule 11 to the Companies Agt, 2013, the management estimate every year, on the basis of
rechnical assessment, the uselul life aod eesidual value of tfemns of P'PE, if the useful fife [ rosdual value are different
from that specified in Schedule 11

Diepreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the cxtimated useful life of the gssews in accordance
with Schedule 11 to the Companics Act, 2013,
An item of PPE and any significant part initially recopnised is desecognised upon disposal or when no future
cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal \ny gin or Joss arising on derceognition. of the asset
{cabculared as the difference berween the net disposal priice eils and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the
incoime staternent when the asser s derccognised.

212 lInd AS 17 - Leases

w

The determination of whether an arangement is {or conams) a lease is based on the substance of the arfangement at
the inception of the lease, The arrangement is, O Conis, 4 {ease 1 fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of 4 specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys A righs tis use the asset or assers, even if that dght is not
exphcitly specificd in an armangement.

A lease is clssified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that ransfers substantially to
the lessee all the risks and rewards incidental to owncrstip s clissified as a finance lease, A lease inwhich the lessor
does not transfer substantially to the lessee all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset s classified as an
operating leasc.

Initial dicect costs incurred in negotiating and arranging a0 operanng lease are added 1o the carrvng amount of the
leased asset and recogmised over the lease reem on the saie brasis as rental income

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asct. However, if there i# ni reasunable cermainry that the
Company will oltain ownership by the eod of the lease oo, the assct is deprecinted over the shorter of the estimated
wseful life of rhe asset and the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessce,

2  finance leases are capitalised ar the commencennt of the lease at the inceprinn date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the winimum leise papments.

b lesse payments are apportioned berween financ cliarpes and reduction of the leasc liability so as to achieve a
constant gate of interest on the remaining balance of the lability.

¢ finance charpes are recognised i finance cost m the staicment of profit and loss, unles they are directly
anributalbie 1o qualifying assers, i which cas they are capalized in accordance with the Company'’s general
policy on the borrowing costs.

d  contingent rentals are recognised as expenses i ilie periods in which they are incurred.

¢ operating lease payments age not recognised a5 u expiense i the statement of peofit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term because the payments 1o the lessor are structured 1o itcetuse in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor's cxpueted miflationary cost increases.
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vi Where the Company is the lessor,
a  fnance lease income i not allocated to- accountmng periods 50 as 1o reflect a comstant periodic mre of return
on the net investment outstanding in respect of e lease because the Company dogs not, having regacd to the
totality of facts & circumstances, follow the policy of steasehi-lining of lease rent income,

b rentl income from opetating lease is cecognized  over the rorm of the redevant liase.

contingent rents are fecopnised as fevenue n the peniod o which they are eamed.

amounts due from lessees under finance leases are seconded as recevables at the Company’s net investment in

the leases.

¢ In accordance with Ind AS 17 lease payments under an operating lease ace not recopnised as an expense [/

income on a strajght-line basis over the lase wom beiose the payments o the lessor are structured 1o
increase in line with expected general miflavon 10 compenzate for the lessoc's expected inflatonary cost
INCICASCS,

The Company has not recognised any lease rentals in the books due to lack of agreement and other evidence

in records

213 Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits
i "The Company is cequired 1o assess the mature of its empliyee benefits and make the relevant disclosures

B n

i Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund 15 o defined contnbution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contabution paysble 1o the provident foud The Company recognizes coniribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employes senders the related service. IF the contribution payable 1o the
stheme for service received before the balance sheer date cxeceds the contribution alecady paid, the deficit pavable 1o
the scheme s recognized as a liability after deducting the contelwnion already paid. 1 the eontribution already paid
exceeds the contribution dee for services received betore the balasice sheet date, then excess 1s recopnized s an agset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead 1, for exunple, a reducnion in futuee payment or 4 cash refund,

iii The Company operates o defined benefit gratuity plin i lnha, which requires contriburions -t be made w a
separately adminstered fund mmgn:d by the Life lsusnce Comparanon of India. The cost of pﬂn'iding benelits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the progeoal vt eredie method, The Company bas not made
provision for the entire amount calculated by LIC in respect of its liability under the aforesaid plan and also
not paid the entire amount,

v Past service costs are recopnised in profit o loss on the varlier of
» ‘The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

» The date thar the Company recopnises eelated restruc g cosrs

v MNer interest & calculated by applying the discount vue 1o the ner defined benefit abiline or asser. The Company
recopises the following changes in the net defined bonelin oblymnon as an expense m the standalone statement of
profit and loss:

P Service costs COMPOSiNG CURECT SCIVICE COStE, past-service custs, paing and losses on cunalments and nonrounine
settlements; and
P Mot interest expense of ingome

w The Company is also required to state its policy fir weeminanon benefiss, employee benefit retmbursements: and
benefie risk gharing. Since these are not applicable s the Company, the disclosures related to such benefits
have not been made,

214  Ind AS 20 - Government granis
i Government grants are recognised where there 15 reasoable assurance thar the grant will be recetved and all attached

conditions will be complied with,
i When the grane relares to an expense item, it i eecognised as income on A systematic basis over the pentods thar the
velated costs, for which it is intended to compensate, arc expenscd
When the grant relates 1o an asser, it 18 recopnised as 1ncome in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.
v When the Company receives grants of non-monetany asscts, the asscr and the grant are recorded ar fair value amounts
and released to profit or loss over the expected wseful i 1 o panern of consumption of the benefie of the undedying
asset e by equal annual instalments.



v When loans or similar assistance are provided by povernments or celated institutions, with an imterest tare below the
currcnr applicable marker mite, the effeer of this favourchic imerest s regarded 0s 4 goverament grant. The loan or
assistance is initially recognised and messured ar Far value and the govemment grant is measured a5 the difference
between the initial camying value of the loan and the procedds recived, "The loan is subseguently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable ter financial labilinies.

vi The Company has chosen o present grants refated o an cepense tem as other ncome in the statement of profit and
loss.
However, the Company has not received any granis [rom the Government during the year under review,

215 Ind AS 21 - Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Ranes
i 'The Company's standalone Anancial statements are preseated in INE, which s the company’s functional currency,

i Transactions in foreign currencies are mitially cecorded Dy the Company at the funcnonal currency spot rates at the
dare the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Heowsaover, for practical reasons, the Company uges an average rate if
the average approximates the actual rate ar the date of the vansaction.
Monetary assets and habilities denominared in forelpn curnmaes are ranslaed ar the funcuonal curreney spot cires of
exchange at the reporing date.
iv Exchange differences arising on settlement or teanshision of monetary tems are recopnised in profit or loss with the
exception of the following:
a  Exchange differences artsing on monemey it that form part of a-reporting ennny’s net investment i o
foreign opermtion are recognised in profit or loss o 1l separate financial statements of the reporting entity or
the individual Anancial statements of the fordign operinon, o appropriate.

b Exchange differences arising on monetary itenas that are dosigmated as part of the hedge of the Company’s net
investment of a foreign operation are recognizcd in OCL until the ner investment i disposed of, at which rime,
the curnulative amount is reclassified to profit o loss

¢ Tax charges and eredits anributable o exchunge differcoces on those monetary ftome are also recorded in
OClL.

¥ MNon-monetary ttems that are measured in termns of listoneal cost in a forcign cureency are mranslaed using the
exchange eates ar the dares of the inital ransactions. Nos-monetary items measared an faie value in g foreign currency
are transhited using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valee = dereemined, The gain or loss ardsing on
translation of non-monctary items measured ar faic viloc 1 teatad 0 ling wath the ecognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i, transtation diffcrenes on nems whose fair value pain or loss is recognised in
OCI or profit ur loss are also recognised in OCI or protil ur bss, respectively)

vi The Company considered the two options available under Indian GAAPR, AS 11 -The Effects of changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates with repard to accounting for exchange differences arising on long-rerm (e, having a term of 12
months or more at the date of its ongination) forcyn currency monetary items and - decided to cecognize such
exchange differences as income or expense in protit or loss in the pedod i which they anse. The Company
continues this accounting practice because it is in compliance with Ind AS 21.

216 Ind AS 23 - Borrowing Cosis
i Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs thar an enity mcurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 1o thie extent roparded as an adjustment o the borcowing coses,
Borrowing costs directly atmbumble to the acquisiton, construction or production of a qualifying assct that
necessarily takes a substantial period of tme to get ready Boe ins intended wse or sale are capiralised as part of the cost

of the asser.

i A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requives a substinnal peaod of ome to pet rwady for its intended use or
sale.

iii Borrowing costs that are artributable to the acquisition, Constrection or production of qualifying assets are capialieed
as part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowing ¢ ot sre reeognized as-an expense in the period i which those

are mourred,
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217 Ind AS 24 - Related party and Disclosures

i
il

The Company has wlentafied relared partics as rosquieed b Lud A% 249
In compliance with Ind AS 24, the Company has rocopniad independent directors & investor directors as key

management  personnel.

21% Ind AS27 & Ind AS 110 - Consolidated and separate Financial Statements

As required by Scction 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has not propared consolidared  financial
statements which comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiarics as at 31 March 2019 duc to
lack of information or books from the said subsidianics,

Consolidated financial statements of the Company snd s Subsidiaries  have not been been prepared by combining
on 4 line-to-ling basis by adding together the book vihios of like itemng of assets, labilines, incomes and cxpenses after
fully eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transacnons and unrealised profis and lusses because of
unavailability of data for consolidated fnancial satement: and its subsidiarics

219 Ind AS 28 & Ind AS 111 - Investment in associates and joini ventunes -

i
il

vin

Anassoctate % an ontity over which the Company has syoificant influenee.
Significant influence i the power to participate in the Goanciil and operatng policy decisons of the investee, but is
not control or jolnt control over these policies.

A juing venture i3 a type of joint arrangenent wheeeby the pemies that have joint conteal of the armagement have
rights to the net assets of the joint veniure.

Juint control is the contrctually agreed sharng of contol of an srmangement, which exises only when decisions about
the relevant activitics require unanimous consent of the | arlics sharing control.

The consideranons made in derermining whether sinnficnt pifluence o joint control are sumilar to those necessary to
determine control over the subsidiaries.

The financial statements of the associate orjoint veatw's ace preparcd for the same reporting peried as the Company.
When necessasy, adjustments are made to brang the accounting policies i hne with those of the Company,

The Company’s investrnents in ifs associare and joint veine wre accounbed for using the equity method

Under the equity method, the fnvestment i an associate or o joint venture i initially recognised at cost. ‘The carrying
amount of the investment s adjusted to recognise changes o the Company’s share of net assets of the associate or
joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relanng o the associate or jont venture 8 included in the carcymg
amount of the investment and s not tested for impatomeont individually,

After application of the equity method, the Company derermines whether it 15 necessary o recognise an impaiement
loss on its ihvestment in its associate or joint venture. A1 cich reportng date, the Company determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment in the associue o joiif venture is impaired. IF there s such evidence, the
Company caloulates the amount of impaimment as the differonee berween the recoveralile amount of the assocate or
joine venture and s careying value, and then recopnises the liss as Shaee of profit of an associace and a jownt venrare®
in the statement of profit or loss.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Compam ™ shaee of the results of opeeitions of the associate or int
venture. Any change in OCI of these investees is prosonted an pan of the Company's OCLL In addition, when there
has been o change recognised directly i the equity of the assicite or joint venture, the Company recognises irs share
of any changes, when applicable, in the statrement of changes m cquity. Unrealised gaing and losses cesulting from
teansactions berween the Company and the assocmte or ot venture are climinared 1o the extent of the interest in the
ASSOCHEIC O ]ﬂtl‘l' VeI,

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a jeint vente wquals oF exceeds s interest in the associate or joint
venture (which includes any long teem interest that, in substnce, fom part of the Company's ner investment in the
associte or joint venture), the entity discontinues rocopmismg i share of further losses Additional losses ace
recognised only to the exent thar the Company has meurced Jegal or constructive obligations: or made payments an
behalf of the associate or joinr venture, If the assocare oo joint venture subsequently reports profits, the enrity
resummes recopnising its share of those profirs only afwer s shure of the profits equals the share of Josses not
recopnised.
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The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or loss of an assocute and # joint venture i shown on the face of the
staternent of profit and loss.

Upon loss of s“mﬂ-g_n[ inflivenee over the assocute or ywoint conrrol over the p‘:ml venture, the O LMIPany Mmeasires
and recognizes any remined investment at s fair waloe, Aoy differcnee berween the carryige amount of the associate
o }pm: venture upon lerss of sij_.:ﬂ.[ll:mﬂ influence or poibn ¢ sntrol and the faie value of the cetained mvestment and
procecds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss

‘The Company's interest in joing operations as per Ind AS 111206 recognised in the form of

P Assets, including its shaee of any assets held jointly

» Liabilities, including its share of any labilites incureed intly

= Revenue from the sale of its share of the output arisig from the joint speration

B Share of the revenue from the sale of the outpur by the jainr operarion

> Expenses, including its share of any cxpenses incurred jcintly

During the financial years under review, the Company may have some intercst in any associate or joint
venture which is not determined due to lack of information or records maintained.

Ind AS 32, Ind AS 107 & Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments : Presentation & Disclosures:

A financial ingtrument 5 any conteacr that pives mse to u fnancial asset of one entity and a financial labiliy or equity
instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial asscts: All foncal assets are secopmsed initilly o amostized
cost plus, in the case of financial assers not recorded 21 faie value through profit or loss, rransacrion costs that are
altribul:lblc t the acquisition uf the fAnancial asser, Purclases or sales of financial I:SIHH that ﬂ:qlurr.‘ delivery nfasms

LI R L] 1 ¢

‘i‘l.lbﬂl:{[u.cnt mcuu:cment o;l' ﬁnancﬂl asseis: o primquoses of s'.uhstqumf maxummut financial :IS!M:b’ are
claszified in four caregonics:
2 P Debtinstruments at amaornised cost
b P Deleinstruments at faic value throogh otlier comprehiensive income [FVTOCT)
¢ P Debtinstruments, dedvatives and equity instrumens at fir value through profie or loss (FVTPL)
d  » Lguity instruments measared ar fur value through orher comprehensive income (IVTOCT)
Debe instruments at amortised cost: A “debt tstrament’ is measured a the amortised cost if both the following
condinons are met:
a P The asser is held within a business model winse abjective st hold assers for collecting contracrual cash
flows, and
b P Contmctual terms of the asset give rise on spivified dates o cash Aows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPL) on the prancipal antount ourstanding,
This category is the most relevant to the Company. Alter initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortiscd cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount
of premium on acquisition and fees or costs. The losses urising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at EYTOCE A ‘debt inseriument’ s clissified o= ar the FVTOCT i borh oof the following eritenia are
met

a P The objective of the business maodel i achicved Both by colleceing conteaceual cush flows and selling the

financial asscts, and

b P The asser’s contractual cash flows represent 510 L
[Debt instruments included within the FVTOC! category are mcasuncd lnl'ti':lu:l.' as well as ar each ﬂ:‘]:'ml'tii'l.ﬂ_ date at Far
value. Fair value movements are recopnized in the odher comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognives intercst income, impairment losses & roversals and foreign exchange pmin or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asser, cumulative gain or loss previoesly recognised in OCT is reclassificd from the equity 10 P&l
Interest camed whilst holding FVTOCT debr instrunw s s veportod as interest income usmng the Effective Tnmerest
Rare (EIR) method.

The Company docs not have any financial asset in tie form of debtinstruments at FVIOCL
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Debe instrument at FVTPL: FVTTL k2 residual cveory for debt instruments, Any debr mstrument, which does
ret Mkt the critera for cateporization as at ameortizzed coor o s Y TOCT, s classificd ag ar [V TPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate o Jobr msrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCH criteria, as at PVITL However, such decrion is allowed only if doing so ceduces o eliminates a
messurement or recogninion inconsistency {refermed pooas Saccounting mismatch’).

Debr ingtruments included within the FVTPL eategony are measured ag fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&l

The Company has not designated any debt instrument a5 at FVIPL.

Equity investments at FVTPL: All equity mvestmonts m scope of Ind AS 109 arc measured at faie value, Equity
instruments which are held for teading and contigonr consideration. recognised by an acquiser i a business
combination to which Ind AS103 applics arc classificd 4w VT,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL eategor, are measured ar fair value wath all chanpes recogniized in the
Pl

The Company docs not have any financial assetin the form of equity instruments at FVTPL.

i Equity investments at FVTOCI: For all other equity instnaments, the Company may make an irrevocable election

to present in other comprehensive income subsequent cliges in the fie value. The Company makes such dection on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The chssification 1 viade on nital secognition and 15 irrevocable.

IF the Company decides o classify an equity mstrumens s at VI 31, then all fair value <hanges on the mstiment,
excluding dividends, are recognized i the OCL There 1+ o recyeling of the amounts from OCT 1o P&L, even an sale
of investment. Flowever, the Company may rransfer the sapulative gin or loss within equin

The Company docs not have any financial asset in the form of cquity instruments at FVTOCL.
Derecognition: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a parr of u financial asset or pan of a Company of similar
financial asscis) is primarily derccognised (e temovid From the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

P The rights to receive cash fows from the asser have copired, or
P The Company has transfereed its rghts 1o receive coh flows from the asser or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full withour material delay to o tued parry under a ‘pass-through' arangement; and either

{i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(i) the Company has neither transferred nor retained ubstantidly all the rsks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control af the asscr,

When the Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from an asset or has entered imo a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has revinad the niks and rewards of vwoership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantally all of the risks and wwands of the asset, nor transferecd control of the asset, the
Company continues to recogaise the transferred asser i the cxtent of the Company’s continuing invelvement. In that
ease, the Company also recognises an associated libility e iransferred assce and the assoclared lability are measured
on a basis that refleets the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaranies over the transferred asset s musured ar the lower of the
original earrying amount of the asset and the maximum amoont b consideration that the Company could be required
b IEguty

The Compuny has not derecognized any financial asset.



% Impairment of financial assets: In aceordance with pd A5 109, the Company applics expected eredir loss (ECL)
mmodel for measurement and recognition of impatement los un the following financial assors and credit risk cxposurc:

P Financial asseis that sce debt instruments, and arc nicasurid a1 smortised cost eg, loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance

» Financial assets that are debt instruments amd are mesured as at IVTOC

» Lease receivables under Ind AS 17

» Teade reccivables or any contracrual tight 1o reccive cash or another financial asser thar result from transactions
that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and lod A5 18 (ceferned 10 a3 ‘eomimctual revenue receivables' in these
fimancial statements)

P Loan commitments which are not measured as at 1V 1.

P Financial puarantec contracts which are not measured s p VI

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recopninen of impaicment hogs allowrance on:

P Trade receivibiles or contract revenue receivables; ad

» Al lease roceivables resulting from rransactions within the scope of Ind AS 77

The apphication of simplificd approach does not rouire the Company to teack chanpes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 1102 e cach reporting date, sighs from ies initial cecognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial docrs cnd sk exposure, the Company deteemines that whethes
there has been 2 significant inerease in the credit ok swce il eccognition. 1F eredu risk has not increased
significantly, 12-manth 1CL, s used to provide foe mpiceent loss. However, if credit risk s increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in 8 subscquent period, credic quality of the instrument improves such that theee is no longer
a significant increase in eredit nisk since inital recogninon, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment Joss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Liferime FCLL are the exprered credit losses eesulting from all possible definlt evenrs over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a partien +if the hfetme ECL which results from default events that are

possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference berween all contraciual cash flones thar are due to the Company 10 accordance with the conteact
and all the cash flows that the eatity expects to receive [, il cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an ennity is required ro consulcr

» All contractul terme of the financial instumeni (ncluding prepayment, extension, cill and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrament. Hlowever, in gane cases when the expected hife of the financial nstrument
cannot be stimated reliably, then the entity 1 requind o wse the remaining contractzl teem of the fivancil
ingtrument

P Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other crodit cnhancements that ace integral o the contractual terms

As a practical expedicnt, the Company uses 2 provision ateis to determine impairment loss allowance on purtfolio of
its trade receivables. ‘The provision marrix is based on i1+ hisrorically observed default rates over the expected life of
the teade reccivables and is adjusted for forward-lookigg csemates. At overy reporting date, the historical observed
default rates wre updated and changes in the forsand-ioking csnmates are anulysed. Oin thar basis, the Company
eatimates the following provision matrix at the reporting Jane

Curent 130 durs 31-60 days 61-90 days past More than 90 days
past Jiu st e due past due

Default rate 015% Lo 360 .61 10.60%,
ECL impaiement loss allowance (or reversal) recopnived during the period i cecognized 25 income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflecid under the head “other experiics” i the P&l The balance
sheet presentation for vadous fnancial instruments is de s nbed buow:

P Dinansial sssets measured as at amorised cost, contactual revenue receivables and lease recervables: BECL. 18
presented a5 an allowanee, ie., 28 an intepeal part of (he measircment of those assers i the balance sheet. The
allowance reduces the ner carrying amount. Unil the asset meens write-off eriten, the Company does not reduce
impaiement allowance from the gross carrying amouns
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P Loan commitments and financial puarantee contecte [ is presented as.a provision in the balince sheet, Le as s
labiliry.

B Debi instruments measured ar FVTOCE Since founcil assers are already reflected an fair value, impairment
allowanee is not further reduced from its value. Rathir 101 amount s presented a3 ‘accumulated impairment
ampunt’ in the OCL

For assessing increase n credit risk and impaiement loss, the Company combines finaneisl instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk chamcteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that ix designed enable sipnificant
increases in credit risk to be identified on 2 omely basis

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCH) financial assets, ie.,
financial asscts which are eredit impaired on purchase / ongination. The Company has made adequate
provision for doubtful debis and has not made any provision for ECL.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded dervanve is a comprinent of a ||}Il:|rid commlined) matrument that also includes a non-derivative host
contract — with the effect that some of the cash flous of the combined instrument vary in a2 way similae to 2
standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some o all of the cash flows thar atherwise would be required
by the contract to be modified acconding to a specificl mrerest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price,
forcign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case ofa
aonfinancial variable that the varable i nor specific to 4 party ti the contract. Reasscssment only occurs if there is
either a change in the terms of the contract that significuitly modifics the cazh fows thar would otherwise be required
ar 3 reclassification of o Anancial asset outof the EBaic vl thoough proft or loss:

If the hybrid contract contains @ host that is a financul Seet within the scope of Tnd AS 109, the Company does not
separate embedded dirivatives. Rather, it applies the claailication roquirements contained in lod AS 100 to the entiee
hybrid contrmct. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts. aee accounted for as separte derivatives and
eecorded at faie value if their economic charctenstics and rilks are not closely eelated to those of the host eontracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or desspmatcd at Fie value though profit or loss. These embedded
decivatives arc measured at fair value with changes m (3ir valuc recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as
effective hedging instrsments.

The Company's financial instriments are not decvauve instroments,
Initial recognition and measurement of financial liablites: 1-imancial labilitics aee classificd, at initial recognirion

¥ financial liabilives ar farr value theough profin o loss,

» loans ansd Borrowings,

» payables

¥ decivatives designated as hedging insteuments i effecrive hedge

All financial liabilities are recognised intially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, nev of
directly atteibutable transaction costs.

The Company's financial labilities include trade and other puyables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis, financial guarantee contracts but not de pvutive financial instruments.

B A o B

Financial guarantee contracts: Financial guarantes coneracts issucd by the Company arc those conteaces thar require
4 payment to be made o reimburse the holder for a s i mcurs because the specified debitor fails ro make a payment
when due in sccordance with the terms of a debt instrnent. Financial guasntee contrces arc recognised mitally as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for teansaction costs thar e dircetly attnbutable to the sswance of the guarnntee.
Subscquendy, the lability is measwered at the higher of the sumount of luss allowance determined a3 per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recopnized los cumulanive amortsaton.

Derecognition: A financial lability is deeccognised w o th abligation under the lability i discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existng Grancial liabality is replacd Iy aninther from the same lender on substantudly different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantilly modificd, such an exchange or minlification s treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recogaitin of 4 new liabiliy. ‘The difference m the respective carrying
amounits is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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xv Reclassification of financial assets: The Company Jerermines classificaion of financil assets and libilities un
initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclissficinon s made for financial assers which are equity instruments
and financial liabilities. For fnundal assers which arc Icbt istrments, o reclassification is made only if thete 22
chanyge in the husiness model for managing those assets hanges 1o the business model aee expected to be infroquent.
The Company's scpior management determines chamy i the business model as 4 sesuli of external or inteenal
changes which are significant 16 the Company's operations, Such changes are evident o exrernal parties. A change in
the business model occurs when the Company either bopas o ccases to perform an sctiviry that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial asscts, u applies the reclassificarion prospectively from  the
reclassificarion dare which is the first day of the immediiney nest reporting period fullowing the change in business
mode, The Company does not restate any previonsdy rooogided ains, losscs {including impaimment gains or losses)
o inlerest,

The following table shows various rechssification and loe they are accounted foc

Original Revised classification Accounting reatment
classificat
ion
Amoenised FVIPL Fair value i woeeured ar ceclissifieation: dave, Difterence’ between previous
cost amdoetized cost i fair value i recognised in P&L
FVTPL Amornised Cost Fair value ar rechussification date becomes its new gross carryiog amount. BIR, is
calculated basad o the e gross carrying amount. .
Amortised FVTOCI Fair value & meswed ot rechissification date. Difference: between previous
cOsE amortised cost and B value 15 recogmised in CHCL No change in BIR due o
rechassification.

FVTOC] Amuortised cost Fair value ar roclassificanon dare becomes ity new amortised cost carcying
amoymt. Heowever, comulative gain or loss in OCI s adjusted against Bur value.
Conscquently, the st is measured as if it had always been measured at
amuortised cosr.

FVIPL FVTOCH Fair valie at peclosaficinon date becomes its new corrying amount, No other
adjustment i requirad.,

W] FIPlL. Aszetx continue o e measured ar Bic value. Comulanve “ﬂ-il‘l or loss pmi(‘rl.sf}l'
recognieed in O] v seclesificd o P&L at the reclassificarion date.

The Company has not reclassificd any financial instoument.

xvi Offsetting of financial instruments; Financial asses and foancial labiflities sre offset and the net amount is
reported in the srandalone bakince sheet if there is 3 cureontly enfurceabile legal right 1o offser the recognised amounts
and there it an intention to settle on a ner basts, 10 realis: the issers and sertle the Habilitic simultaneously.

The Company has not offsct any financial asset and lnancial liability.
xvil Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting - Ind AS 109 & 32

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement: | feovative financial instruments ace initrally recopnised ar fair
value on the dite on which a derivative conract 1 (nnooed no and are subsequently re-measured at faic value,
Decivatives are carried as financial assers when: the fir value s pusitive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative. The purchase contraces that meet the defintian of a dervative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, Commaodity contracts tha are entceed into and continue 10 be held for the purpose of
the mc'wr or delivery of 2 non-fingncal ftem in acconinace with the Company’s tl]’k.‘ﬂlk‘d [HII'I:I"I!H‘.. sale or usage
requirements are held ar cost.

Any gains or losses arsing From changes in the faie value oF derrviitives are taken directly 1 profit o loss, except for
the effretive portion of cash flow hedpes, which is recugpsed m OCT and later reclissified w0 peofit e loss when the
hedge item affects profit or loss or treated a5 basts adysenent 1f 3 bedged forecast tansacton subsequendy cesults in
the recognition of & non-financial ssset o non-financal 0l by,
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Far the purpose of hedge accounting, hedpes are classifiod os:

P [iair value hedpes when hedping the exposue ro changes i the fate value of a recopnized asset or lability
or an unrecognised firm commitmens

P Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposare o vadability in cash Qows that is either attributable to 3
particular rsk associated with o recognised ussvn or lghulity. or a highly probable forecast transaction o the
foreipn currency risk in an unrecognised fivm comoiitnien

P ledges of a net investment in'a foeeign dperiien

At the inception of 1 hedpe relationship, the L:mip:n.-. formally designates and documents the hedge rﬂtatmnmp o
which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the nsk management objecove and strategy for undertaking
the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s -k nanigement objective and strtegy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item o trmssaction, the nature of the nsk being hedeed, hedge ratio
and how the entity will asscss the effeciiveness of chonges in the hedping instramient’s fair vilue in offsetting the
exposure to changes in the hedged iem’s fair value o0 cash fows anributable w the hedped sk, Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offserning <langes in faie value or cash Bows and are assessed on an on-
going basis to determine that they actoally have been hishly cftecrive throughout the financial reporting peniods for
which they were designated.

Hod.gus that micet the strict criteria for hedge accounting e accountid for, as deseribed beloae

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging e & recopnised in the statement of profit and loss a5
finance costs. The change m the fir value of the hedped wem anributable w the nsk bedped 5 recorded as
part of the carrying value of the hedged atem amd 15 also recopnised i the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs.

For faic value hedpes.eolating 1o dtems caened o aostised cost, any adjustment 1o currying value is amornised
through profit or loss ever the rematning term ol the hedge using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may
begin as soon as an adjostment exists and no Lier than when the hedged rem ceases to be adjusted for
chanpes in'its fair value armbutable ro the ek bong bedged,

If the hedged em 18 derceogmised, the unamwrmiest e value g recogmsed mmmediarely 10 profit or loss:
When an unrecognised firm commitment 15 designared as a bedged item, the subscquent cumulative change in
the fair value of the firm commitment atrburalie to the hedged sk s recogmsed as an asset or lability with
a corresponding gain or loss cecognised in prodin ond liss

The Company docs not have interest fate svoups thal are used as a hedge for the exposure of changes
in the fair value fixed rate secured loans.

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of the gain or Joss on the hedgmy mstrument 5 recopmsed i OCH in the cash fow
hedge reserve, while any meffective portion 15 recognised immediarely in the stiement of profit and Joss.

Amounts recognised as OC] are wansfornesd 1o peofi o luss when the hedpel ransaction affects profit or
loss, sueh as when the hedged financial incenre e finaneal expense i cecopmised or when a forecast sale
occurs. When the hedped o s the cost of o non-finencial asset or non-finencial liability, the amounts
recognised as OC] are tranisferred to the initial ¢ i meun of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedping instrument expices o is sold, woninaied o exercised withour replacement or rollover (as pan
of the hedging stratcpy), or if its designanon as 4 hodpe = revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the
eriteria for hedige accounting, any cumulative i or s previously recognized n OCT cemates separately in
equity until the forccast transacion occurs or 1he forcgm currency firm commitment s met.

The Company does not use forward cirrency vontracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency
risk in forccast transactions and firm compotioents, as well as forward commodity contracts for its
exposure to volatility in the commodity priccs. The incffective portion relaing to foreign currency
contracts is recognised in Anance costs,
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#  Hedges of a net investment
Hedpes of a net investment in a forepn operanion, inchidding a hedge of a-monctany tem that is accounted for
as part of the ner mvestmunt, are accounted 100 w0 a0 wiy sholar o cash flow hedpes, Gaing or losses on the
hedging wsoument relaring ro the cffecnve pomon of the hedge are recognised as OCT while any gains or
losses relating to the incffective poction are roc gmiiscd in the statement of prafit or loss. On disposal of the
foreign opemtion, the cumulative value of any such mins or losses recorded in equrry is reclassified o the
statement of profit or loss (a3 4 reclassificanon o fustmen).

The Company docs not use a loan as @ hedge of its exposure to forcign exchange risk on its
investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Company does not use dervative finandial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, w hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate
risks and commaodity price risks, respectively,

xviii Loan processing fees: As tequired by Ind A5 109, loan processing fecs are amertized over the penod of the

respective loan.

Cltegﬂrisﬂiﬂn of financial instruments

Particulars As at 3lst March{As at 31st March|
2020 2019

(i) Financial Assets L

Measured at amortised cost

Investuments 284,95 284,95

Loans 3017159 017793

Trade Receivables 260388 266588

Cash and Cash Equivalents 39.24 21885

(ii) Financial Liabilitics

{a) Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings BA516.20 83.566.78

Trade Payables 546320 5.387.64

Orther Financial Liabilines T0,28.20 67,500.38

221 Ind AS 33 - Eaming Per share

i Basic carnings per share are ealculated by dividing rhe ner profic or boss for the period attributable to- equity

sharchaolders {after deducning preférence dividends and dnaburable raxes) by the weighred average number of equity
shares outstinding dunng the pedod. Partly paid equity haees are treated a2 a fraction of an cguity share to the extent
that they are entitled to participare in dividends selanve 1w g fully pad equity: share duemg the reporcting period. The
weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the pedod s adjusted for cvenes such as bonus issue,
bonus element 0 2 rights ssue, share splin, and revers - shie sphie (comsolidation’ of sharcs) that have changed the
ntmber of equity shares outztanding, withour a correspe |ding change in resources,

i For the purpose of caleulating dilured carnings per share, the et profit or loss for the period anrburable o equity

gharcholders and the weighted averge number of shans curstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity sharces, except where the sésulb are ann-dilutive.

222 Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Asset
i The company asscsses at each reporting date whether there i an mdication that an azset may be impaired. [f any

indication exists, or when annual impaimment festing (o a0 sasct s required, the company cstimates the recoverable
amount of the assct. Such recoverable amownt is the b here of an sséer’s or cash-genceraring unir’s (CGLY ner selling
price and itz value in use. The recoverable amount o detennimed for an idividoal asset, unless the asser does nol
generate cash mflows that are bupely mdependent of these funm other assets or groups of assers. Where the canying
amount of an assct or CGU exeeeds its cecoverable ansouat, the asset is considersd impaired and is written down to

its recoverable amount.
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In assessing value in usc, the estimated futuee cash flow: are diseoumted 1o their present value using 3 pre-tx discount
rate thar ceflects ‘curront market assessments of the e vatue of money aod the ke spedfic to the asset. In
deteemining net selling price, recent marker fransaction s are ke into account, if avatlable. 1f no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation modd s use! These calealations are caroborared by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly raded companics or ather wilalile farr value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on devilsd budpets and forecast caleudarions which are. prepared
separately for each of the company’s cash-generating wiis 1o which the individual assets arc allocated. These budgers
and forceast ealeulations are generally covering a period of five years. For longee perinds, a long term growth rate is
caleulated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. For longer periodls, 3 long-tenm growth rare is
caleulated and applied to project future cash flows atir the fifih year. To esnmate cash fow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgers/ forecints, (e Comiing extrapolates cash flow projections in the budger
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent § e, unless an ingreasing eate can b justified. In any case, this
growth rare does niot exceed the long-term average grovih e for the products, industrivs, o country or CoUntries in
which the entity operates, or for the marke in which the asat s wsed

Impaiement losses of continui setiong, mcluding (pament on inventurics, are recogmised in the statement of
et litdng opc |

profit and loss, except for propertics previcusly revelied with the revaluation surplus tiken o OCL For such
properties, the impairment is recognised n OCH ap to the amuunt of any previous revaluation surplus

Afiier impairment, deprecianon is provided on the revise | carrying amount of the asset over o remaining useful life,

For assers excluding goodwill, an asscssment is made a1 <ach reportigg date as 1o whethee there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longor esist o may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
company estimates the asset’s of cash-pencrating unit's cocoverlile amount. A previnusly recopnized impairment loss
is reversed only if there has been a change in the sssumpuions used to deteemine the asser’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment foss was recognizcd. The reversal i limated =0 that the carrying amaunt of the asset does not
exceed is recoverable amount, nor exceed the caceying i tiat would have been determmed, net of deprecisoon,
had no impaimment loss been recognized for the asset i prvr years. Such seversal is recopmiced in the smtement of
profit and loss unless the asscr it carred ar 8 revaluid omdunt, mowhich case the reversal is treatcd a2 a revaluarion
InErease.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually a5 at 31t Alorch and when circumstances mdicate that the carrying value
may be impaired,

Impairment s deteemined for goadwill by pssessing the recoverable amount of each CGLE for Company of CGUS) 1o
which the goodwill refates. When the recoverable s of the CUGL s Jess than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss i recognized. lmpairment losses relating 1o goudwill are pot reversed in furare perods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for mpatrment anmually as ar 315 March at the CGU Jevel, as
appropeate, and when circumstances idicare that the e eeyug value iy be impaired.

Tnd AS 36.96 permiits the annual impairment test for 5 50 10 which goodwill has been allucated to be performed e
any time during the year, provided it s ar the same ooy cach year Different goodwill and mtangible assets may be
tested at diffeeent times,

223 Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assct

Provisions are recognizsed when,
a  the Company has a present oblymuon (legal or consrructive; as a reult of a past event
b it i probable that an cuflw of resources cnilusdving ceonomic benefits will be required to serle the
obligation and
¢ o reliable estimate can be made of the amaunr ol the aliligaon,
When the Company expects some or all of 4 provision (o be ceamlrirsed, for example, ander an surance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised #s 8 separate asser, bur ly when the reimbursement is vienaally certain.

il The expense relatiog to a provision 1s presenred m the styement of profit and koss net of any ceimbursement.

v

If the cffect of the time valse of money s materal, poofeones are discounted using 4 current pre-tx rate that reflects,
when appropeiate, the risks specific to the labiliny. Whis iseounring 12 used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of fime is recognised as o finance cost. .



Provisions for wirmany-related costs are recogaiied wihon the product 1 sold or service provided 1o the customer.
Initial recognition is bascd on historical wxperienee, Thy ol estinate of warnnty=relatcd costs i rovised anmaally,

Restructuring provisions are recognised only when the Conipaily bas a constructive. olilization, which 15 when a
detailed formal plan idearifics the busmess o pact of o business comcerned, the location and aumber of employees
affected, a derailed estmate of the assocuted costs, and an approprate timeline, and the cmployees affected have been
natified of the plan’s main feamres,

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a prosent obliganon (ol or constructive) s a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of reseurce emliadyving cconimie benefits will be required to sertde thie obligartion
and 4 reliable estimare can be made of the amount of the obliginion. When the Company expects some ae all of:a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, unider an msurinee caniect, the reembursement = recopmised as o scparate
asset, but only when the combucsernent 1= virually e The expense relating 16 A provision is presented in the
statement of profit and loss aer of any reambursament

224 Ind AS 38 - Intangible Asset

i

vi

vil

As required by Ind AS 3872, the Company has choson the st middel as per Ind A5 374 for measurement of
infangible assers. The Company has measured the cost ol acquisition ue construction of intangible assets in
accordinee with Ind A5 38.24-3871,

Intangible assers acquired sepamately are measural on iniial recopnition at cost The cost of miangble assets acquired
in & business combirtion i their fair value at the date 0F auguianom

Internally pencrated intangibles, excluding  capitaliscd develotiment costs, are not capitabised and - the rehited
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss i the peaod in o luch expenditure ts incurned,

Following initial recogmition, intangilile sssers ane Gormal 6 cost s any secumulated wmorosanon and accumulared
impairment losses.

The usehil lives of intangible asscts are asscssed as cither e or indefinite.

Intangible assers with fnite lives are amortised aver the usehul coonomic life and assessed for impairment wheneves
there is an indication that the intangilile asset may be impared

The amortisation period and the amortisition method Guran inrangible asser with a finite uscful life are reviewed at
least a1 the end of cach reporting peniod. Changes i the expected useful life o the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodicd i the asset are considerad 10 modify the amortisation period or method, as
approprite, and are teeared as changes in accomnting cdimeies,

The amortisation cxperise on intangible assets with finhie bves 15 sweogmised in the stterment of profit and loss unless
such expenditure firms part of carrying value ob anothe) asicr,

Iomngible asscts with indefiniee wseful By are not avartisct, bt are pested for impaiement annually, either
individually ar at the cash-generating unit level. The avcssment ol indefinite life 15 reviewed anmully o deteomine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable 11 not, the change n useful life from indefinite to finite 15
made on a prospective hasis.

Gains or losses ansing from derceopnition of an mitangble asat are measured as the ditference berween the net

disposal procecds and the carrying amount oF fhe asser o ans recoanised m the statement 4o profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

225 Ind AS 38 - Rescarch and development costs

i
i

Research costs are expensed as meurred.
Development expenditures on an indivadual projeet aie o gised as an intangible dsser when the Company can
demonsteae

» The technical feasibility of comploting the anrmgable asser so that the assee will be available for use or sale

B s intention oo complete and s aliiliey aned wnention v use or sell the asser
» [ow the asse will genemte future coommie v
P The availability of resources o complete fy o
B The ability to measure echabily the expendie: dusing development
During the period of development, the asset i rsted ton mpainment anelly
Following initial -recognition of rhe developmen exp aditure as i asset, the aser i carded ar cosc less any
accumulated amortisation and sccomulated mpuimment osses,
Amortisation of the asset beging when developrunt s compleie and the asset is availabile for use,
It is amortised over the period of expected fuuee benefil

vii Amortisation expense 15 socognised in the stiement of profic and luss unless such expendituee forms part of carrying

value of another asser.
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226 Ind AS 38 - Patents and licences

i The Company makes upfront payments o purchise pricars and lieences. The patents arc granted for o cectain period

the relevant povernment agency with the opioa of ronwwal ar the end of this period.
B BEC) { pene

i Licences for the use of intellecrual property are granted for certain periods depending on the specific licences. The
licences may be renewed ar biride or 10 cost to the Coinpany. A o result, those licences are asscssed as having an

indefinite wseful lite.
iii A summary of the policies applicd 0 the Comprny’s me npbile asiets 15, as follows
Intangible Useful lives Amarli:-mli.uu_:fc_umd uscd | Iuternally generated or acquired
Licences Indebiniee | No amoriissnig _ PAeguind
Patents Finire Amortsed on o sormighe-lng Basi] A oguined
Develapment | Finite Amortised  on 2 stoidielng Intermally penérated
COSTE basiz over e period  of
cxpecred future salis foom the
rebuted propct

227 Ind AS 40 - Investment Property

i Investment propertics are measured nintally oo cost, facluding trausaction: costs, Subsequent to initinl cecognition,
investment properties are stated at cost Joss accomolared dereciann and aceumutated nnpairment loss, if any.

i The cost incudes the cost of replicing pact and loamwing costs for long-term construction projects if the
secognition eriteris are met. When shuuficis pargs of the invesmem property are vequired o be replaced ar intervals,
the Company deprociates them separatcly busced o theie specifie useul lives. Alllother repair and maintenance costs

are recopmised in profic or loss asme urred

fi The Company deprociates builiding: componen of indsanent property over 30 peats from the date of onginal
pirchase.

w The {}.ﬂ!pﬂﬂ!‘, based on techneal s inude By techacal oxpart and mEanagemane estmmate, ‘IGPNCB“H- the
building over cxtimated useful lives which are diffcrene froan the uselal life preserbed in Sehedule 1T to the '-'.:Oﬂ's[ﬂmﬁ
Act, 2013, The management believes than these cnmaic ) wseful lves are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets anc lkely o b gl

v Though the Company measuses mvestinent property sing oot based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes Fair values are deramined based on an annual cvaluation performed by an
accredited external independent valuer applim: & valstieon misled recommended by the Intemational Valuation
Standards Committec.

i Investment properties are dercoognicd Cither when they have beon disposed of or whin they are permanently
withdrawn from e and no funsre ceanmi beactin 5 expected from theie disposal, | he diffecénce between the net
disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of (he et i reamisal in profit of loss in the perod of derecognition.

The Company has elected to contintie with e carrying value forall of its investment property as recognised
in its Indian GAAP financial staterents a5 at the transition date, viz., st April 2015,

vii

Ind AS 105 - Non-current assets held for saly & discontinued operations:
i The Company chissifies non-current asseis o dispusal vnderaking "held for sale / distnbution to ownoees” if their

carrying amounts arc expected 1o be recoveead prnerpally theouph a sale / distabution rather than through continuing
use.
i The criteria for held for sale/ distribaotion chosificson i cegmeded mee only when

o theasscrs-or disposal undermaking o avibdile foo mmedie sale distribution i irs present condition, subject
anly to terms that are usual and cusonie fur salis / distrbution of such assets (o disposal undertakings),

its sale/ distribution is highle proluls

¢ v will penuriely be sold, s ahetrkedi masl

d  actions required to complere the wle  trbiion dicate that it is unlikely that synificant changes to the
gale f d‘i,mrﬂ'ﬁ_ulmu will be mvndde e 1 Tane 1w ocisim to sl J dirrribuare will blf withdrown,

e thie ilrl]'ﬁl‘fipfiiilf level of manogement s cosmmnod 16 4 |'L|J.!1 tui sl the asset {tll .Jiapusal mdﬂlﬂkﬂlﬂ}

an active progeamme to docare 4 by ad complere the plan has beon mutrated (ifappheable),

g theassct (ur disposal underbing & Lo senly mackeed for sale at a price that i reasomable in relanion
i current i value,

i the sale b expected to gualify G deciumitin a4 @ complened sale within one year from the date of
claszificanion |



iva

i For these purposes, sale mansactions Wciile ol o7 fH-Current $8sces for othor nun-current assets when the
exchange has congnercial subsmnc
iv Won-current asivis hold for sale / tor dissrbunon i oveners and disposal undertakings an- measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and the far value kes cosre ool distmibute. Assets and labilines classified as held for sale
Jdistribution are presemted separatcly fivehe balance she
v Property, plant and cquipment and il avets ence classified as held for sale / distrbution 1o owners are not
depreciated o amiortised.
vi A disposal undernkmg qualifics as disconnnucd oportion if it = 2 component of un vatity that either has been
disposed of, or i classified as held for sale,
P coprosents a separate major e of liiess o0 geegeaphinl ans of operanons,
P is part of a single co-orddinated plan i i of 3 s major line of business or geographical area of
pperitions, O
P is 2 sebwdiary soquired exclastveh with avien fo resale
vii Discontinued operanons arce exchuded from the rosults of continuing operations and wre presented as a single amount
as profit or loss after fax from discontiued operaiions in e statement of profit and loss.

The Company does not hold any noa-current assets for sile or for discontinued operations.

229 Ind AS 113 - Fair Value Measurciment

i The Company measurcs financil instrinenins, such as, deavanves ar for value at each balance sheet dare.

it Pair value is the price thar windd be réecivid s sell an asset or pad o transfer a Habwlity in an ordedy ransaction
berween market participants at the muasuenont dare | e faie value measurement is based on the presumption that
the reansaction to el the asser o wasster the lnbiling ahes plage vither

» In the principal market for the assed or laoiling, o
» In the absence of 0 pancipal madket,an e moed adviitapeons market For the asset of lahility

i The Pﬂuq'ﬂi ot the uiost nd'.".].l.“’:']#ullu'\- anvar ke mnad g speressible h!. the [:I.J!ﬁ].ﬂ-ﬂ'}'- -

tv The falrc value of an asset or a balality i mcesired pidteng thiee Je'!lilllllfirll1l that market i"'nlﬂlk'i-l'mll would use when
pricing the asser or liability, assuming thae ool participants act in ther econoimic best intcrcsn

v A fair value messurement of 3 oonsfranes| soer plbes mto pocount 2 market participant’s abiliny to generate
economic benefins by wsang the asst mo gl and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would wse the asscr in it highe amd b e

vi The Company uses valuation techiiujues thar src approprale i the clscuinstances and for which sufficient data are
avatlable o messure | Bdr value, maskmiang: the use of selevane observable inputs and mnEmsing the use of
unihservable wnpuee

wii Al assets and labilities for which e salue 3 mosod or disclosed inthe Gnancial satements are categorsed within
the Far value !1i:1'J-Tl'|l:|'. desenbed o fullows, DBased oo e Terwizst el i.l'l[:ll.“ that 1s Sl.gﬂ.'l-ﬁﬂl'l'.' to the fair value
micasurement 35 4 whisle:

» Level 1 — Cuoted (umadjusted) marker prces (n active arkets for wlentical assets o halnlities

» Level 27— Valuation techiiques lor which the ksl fevel mput that is significant o the fair value measrement is
directly or indirecth shservable

» Level 3 — Vahmtion techmsgues foe which the lwest level impur that is significant to the fair value measurcment is

unobscoable

vili Porassets and liabilinies that are reecgomed n the fapont statements on 2 recuming lsts, the Company determines

whether mansfors have accurred berween Jevels i the hicewrchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowese
level input that 15 sigiificant to the fBir valud s o2 4 whale) at the end of cach reporting period.

ix The Company’s Valugtion Comimitiée dercanimgs: i policics and  proceduces for both recusring fair value
messurement, such as dervanve mstruments dud ungeote] fnancial assets measuecd 0 B value, and for non-
recurring measurement, such as asseo beld Lo disidbuin in decontinued operanus. The Viluation Comminee
compriscs of the head of the wsstion poipemie. segment, heads uf the Company's internal mergers and
acquisitions team, ihe head of the nek managoman dipukenient, financal controllers and chict Ananee officer.

x Exteenal valuers are mvolvesd for viluarion of syufivans assets, such s propersics and uiguoted financial agsets, and
significant labilitics, sueh a5 contipens eonssloarion, [velvemient of extemal vatucrs & decided upon anoually by
the Valuation Committee aftée discussion witts und apoeoval by the Company’s Audir Comenirtee. Selection criteria
inchude market knowledye, roputanion, widepaiduies and whether professional stanclards are maintamed. Valuers are
nomally rotated every thece vears: The Valuaiws Compmtee deaudes, after discussions with the Company's external
waluers, which valuaticn techmiques and s o ose for cath case.
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At cach ceportings b, thie Valuanin Congeitne: agaly v the imbvements the values of wsscrs and habihees which
arc required 1o be cemcasured v resrssessod o et ooy s accoantmg policies o this analysis, the Valuation
Committee verifics the mager mpa apphed o the Liesr valuation, by ageeeing the information in the valuanon
compuration to contrects amd orher polevin dovomens

The Vabmation Cotnmuittee, in conjunctbo with (e Company’s oiternal salvers, also compares the chanpe in the fair
| 1}
value of each azacr amd Tabiliy warh edeving cxrenal sonmecs to deeenine whethier the change s reasonable.

Oy an inberm Exisis, the Viduaton Commiiee il the Company’s external valuers present the vahuation results to the
Audit Committee and the Comprny's ok condom mudiors: This inclodes a diseussion of the major assumptions used
in the valuation:

For the purposc o fue value decloseres, toc Company bas deernned classes of assewand labilines on the basis of
the nature, chaciciresdics and tosis of the et o labnlite and the level of the Fir value bicerchy as explained above.

This pote sumisoses accountiigy policy e G valise, e G value related diselosuees are given in the relevant
THITS,

P Diclosures fir valuanon metheds, sganficain csiimares and assemptions

» Contingent consdoranon

® Ouaneanve duclosiees of e value wes sircnent lnerarehy

P Invesement m arsgoeceed o wjitty sinaces (placinuinued O feations)

B Property, plant ard cqquiprownr vder oy s ms b

P Investment progicitics

P Financial nstoament s (iochoding thise cordid atansansed cosy)

P MNon-cash distribwtion

The Company has not elected W apply the portfolio exception ander Ind AS 113,45, If an entity makes an
accounting policy decision W use the cxeepuion, this Get is required 1o be disclosed, as per Ind AS 113,96,

230 Ind AS 115 - Revenue Recognitian

i

it

Ind AS-115 has been noibod b Mg af O orpor e Alhirs (MOA)Y o0 March 28, 2018 and is effective from
accounting peraid gt on OF after ks 00 20k

The Company shall apply Wl cetrospesia. aporoach g adopiing the new saandard (for 4l contracts: othee than
completed contruits) amd accordiigly fecpip. revenie i accordance with Ind A% 115 a3 compared to eardier
Pereentage of Compplotion method as pen the Uluabnee Note on Adcounting for Real Farare Transactions (for entities

to whom Ind ANk applicable)

The Company shall recopmise tevenue wlien i deromnes e sansfaction of pecformance obligatons 2t a point in
time. Revenue zhipll be reetgmised upon trodion of conerd of promised pnw].m:ts. o customer in an amount that
refleces the consicdoranion which the Comg iy st i receve in cxchange for those prodices,

For sale of unirs, (hie Company shallcocog e ovemun whien e perfommance abligations aie satisfied and costomer
obtaing comtrol of the aset

Contract assets are fo be cecognisod wheo there ¢ exeers of revenie carned over billings on contracts. Contract asscis
are classified as wnlilled recovables (ool dce of invoione s pending) when theee i3 anconditional right 1o receive
cash, and only passap of dme i roguinsd, i por contraciual reome

Contract Liabilitics are 1o be seooguised ohien there & billing in ¢xcess of revenue and advince received from
CUSIMICTS.

The Company crtees eotenng bt Dvvelopiens amd Pageor Slanigement agoeements with lind-owners. Accounting
for income from ek propects, reasumesd o D b, B oo on doenml bass as per the womes of the agreement.

IND AS 115 - "Revenue from Contoaces with Customer’ was notified w.e.f. April 1, 2018, replacing INID AS 18 -
"Revenue Recognition' and IND AS 1L - "Conswuction Contracts’. The Company has adopted INID AS 115
with modified retrospective approach foe s cevenue from long term service contructs. The impact thereol
on the Financial results is not significan..

The Company had oot recognised wny sa ol incomplewe projects in the previosu year based on the
Guidance Note on Real Esiate tssued Ly JUAL due e lack of evidences available of the previous sales
considered for individual projecs,

Therefore the Company is said o conpl wile the requirements of said IND AS 115 retrospectively and no
effects needs w bhe restated o tie opeong retsed Carmings.
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x Interest income is accounted on an wecroal basis but not st effective interest eate due to lack of interest

statements but recorded bused on Form 2045,
Change in significan accounting policics

i The Company has appdiad od AS 115 Ravomog Geom conmicrs with customers using thie full retrospective approach
l:[l'_'lt all eontracts onler than con ||1I|.'I1.;.r Carlren

i Ind AS 15 estaliishes o comprehensive fnunework [or determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. Under Tod AS 115, with eifeet from Apal U1, 2017, revenue is recognised when a customer
obtaing contral of the goods or services us comparcd o carlier percentage of completion method as per the
Guidanee Note on Accounting for Real Estuie Transactions {for entities 1o whom [nd AS is applicable).

Material changes reilecting the Finuncial Posinon of the Company

There are procoeding o on against the componiy onded vinow liws siech as The Maharmshtra Protection of Interest of

I')q)ns:"mfs Aot (MY, Foomomie Crifence: W (00 ) = 1, Insslvency: and Bankoiprey Code, 2016 and - other
economic laws. Varous apengns bave mined st bl Asossee Company and i dircciors, vie, Directorate of
Enforcement (1Y), Sooows Fragd Tnvestgunod OFe (SPL10Y cod other-agencies: The orginal documents/agreements
has been seveed by Pl Y and ave nor pvailable fie coneeiigy oot Décessary audit.

It is pertinent to note et e Besolurion Pocdosseial made all the practical and reagonible effvrs fom time o tme o
facilitare the informanon | das trom the olfems of the Company [n relation to the prepaation of the Financal
Statements of the COTIran, avwd alges the tofoorman w Teuiral |r!.' ihe audnors for the purpasc ¢ il L‘nlrf‘_i'illg cr the audit of
the financial statemnenis of thie Compae T g e ponad har the imaocial statements for the FY 17-18 a8 well as the
information provided il oo for the puspose ol moel of the <ime, pertiin o the peaod pros o' the appoinmment
of the Resolution I'voicssiomil and therefore ad thecefiee, while facilitaring the collection and dissemination of the said
information, the Resolunon Professimal hos oclied: upon aod-assumed the seearsey f veracity of dam /' infarmation
provided by the officils o the Company, susponded oo amd long reeoy consultants and the reconds of the Company
muade available to the LF aited T assemied date w oo By with the applicable Jaws and ad prcsent a troe and fir view
of the posiion of the Comnpany as of dates amd Loe the period saicated theecin, The RP has not personally verified the
Information provided Dy the olficials of the Compon and has placed confidence in the dua fmiormation provided. The
Bnancial seaverents huve e semed By the B s o0 prooinotee divecton 1= present. Accosmily, the RP should be absolved
from the ACCUTALY, Veracily wind sntficweney or comydoeness of such Infuanation.

Readers and users of the statements are advised o0 do thele due diligenee before arrdving at any conclusions. The RP has
signed the Financuls Staioens oo Beilinee the CIRP peoniess andd 1o Bacilitare the smtutony requirements without any

liakrility of the s
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CIN : L45201PN1991PLCO63340

D. 5. KULEARNI DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended As at 3lst Mar 2020 | As at 3st Mar 2019
(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)  |{Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)
6 | Non- Current Investmenits
Unquoted
L in Equity I in Subsidiari
DSK Infra Pvt, Lrd,
20,00,000 Exquity Shares of Rs. 10/~ sach fully pasd 200,00 200,00
Insestments in Equity Instuments in Other Companics
DEK Global Education and Research Lod.
733,197/ 7,33,197 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- cach fully pud 1332 T332
I inl inC ixe Baz)
1,000 shares of Rs.50/- each fully paid in Shree Sadgurs Jangh Maharsj Sahakan Bank .50 (.50
Lod
10 shares of Rs. 100/~ each fully pasd in Janaes Sahakan Bank Lad o 0o
10 shaces of Rs 50/~ each fully paid in Mahalumi Co-Op. Bank Lad 0.01 0.0
4,080 shares of Rs.25/- each fully pasd in Greater Bombay Co-Op. Bank Lid. 1.02 102
20,000 shares of Rs, 25/- each fully paid in Kalyan Janara Sahakan Bank Ltd. 5.00 5.00
100 shares of Re. 100/~ each fully paid in Pune Sthakan Bank Ld 10 010
56,000 shares of Rs, 100/~ cach fully pud in Sangh Urban Co-Op. Bank Lud 5.00 5.00
Total Non-Current Investments 284.95 264.95
Additional Disclosures
Aggregate amount of Quoted Invesoments - -
Market Value of Quoted Investments . -
Amtm.t:- amount of Unguoted Investments 2R4.95 284.95
61 | As rnqmm.‘l by Ind AS 27.10, the company has chosen the cost model for measurement of carrping value of ull investment
62 | All the investment in subsichiary and associates are measured at cost a5 per fnd AS 77 Separate Financial Satements
6.3 [All other investments arc camcd at amortized Cost.
7 | Loans - non-current
{a) Deposits unsecured, considered good
i With Related Parties T6.53 T6.53
o With Others 278.41 21841
(5  Loans to Related Partics, unsecured
1 Conmdered good 5,289.40 5,289.40
i Considered doubeful 6,959.68 6,959,068
i Allowance for bad and donbeful debts -4,713.84 -4,713.84
Tomal Loans 7,800.18 7,890.18

7.1 [Debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them ether severally or jointly with any other person or debiy due by firms
or private companies respectively m which any director is @ partner of a director or 8 member.

7.2 | Loans o

affected by the changes in the credit risk of counterpartics.

wits 1o relared parbes have not been venified due to lack of ledger confirmations
9.3 [Toans are non dervatve financial assers which gencrate a feed or vanable interest meome for the Company. The camying value mag be

8 | Other Non-Current Assets

{8} Cenvat Credit BIZ16 Bl216
fb) GST Input Tax Credit z21.02 1239
(c) GST Reverse Changes [TC 584 302
(d) Forcign Currency in Hand 246 246
{¢) Soccity Mamtenance 19285 19285
Total Other Current Assets 1,034.33 1,022.89

the Government postals inspite of vanoos representaions.

8.1 [Credits available from GST or Cenvat are not venbed from retums filed by the mamgement for the period due to ek of logm credentials of

irrecoverable as the possession has been availed.

8.2 [Society Muntenance pad shows the mamtenance paid on behalf of the customers for the fats possessed by them. The same seems to be
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amount resembles the accounting data.

Balance in foregn currency possesses the balance in the forex card held by the Company. The same was not avalable for verificanon hence, the

9 | Inventorics
{z) Constructions Matenals 24594 245.94
B}  Work-in-Progeess 1,55,540.42 1,55,540.42
{c} Finished Tenements 1,381.64 1,381.64
Total Inventorics 1,57,168.00 1,57,168.00
9.1 [Inventones were not wholly physically venfied by the management and hence the same is relied on the valuanon done last year except for the
change in WIP inventory that reflects additional cost incurred or sale of few projects pertaining to kst year accounted for in the current year.
9.2 | Mode of vahuation : See note o fnancial statements
10 | Trade Receivables unsecured, considercd good.
(8} Outstanding for less than six months = 5
(B) Oummnding fora penod excerding six months 2,663.88 2,663,88
Total Trade Receivables 2,663.88 2,663.88
10.1 | Trade Recervables are non-micrest beanng
11 | Cash and Cash Equivalents
{a) Balances with Banks
i Earmarked Balanees with Banks - .00
i Current Account Balances with Bank 2554 2632
mi  Balinces with Banks to the extent held as margn money or security agamst 0.34 179.16
the borrowings, gusrantees, other commitments, etc
w  Deposits with ongnal matunty of less than twelve months 1317 1317
(b} Cash on Hand 020 0.20
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 3924 218.85
11.1 | The details of pledge of the fived deposits held by the Company arc based on kst year's verificasion
11.2 [The balnces of bank recorded above are based on the statements available with the management which are not fully updated and avaslable.
12 | Loans - current
Corsidered doubtful
(@) Advances to related pastics, unsecured, considered doubiful D). 56 00,560
(b}  Advanee to creditors 1,028.22 1,054.93
{c)] Other Advances 20,352.63 20,352.26
Total Loans 2228141 2228774
12.1 | Loans and advances due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them aither severally or jomtly with any other person or
amounts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner ur a director or 3 member
12.2 [ Loans are non denvatve financial assets which generate a fixed or vanable interest income for the Company. The carrymng value may be
affected by the changes in the credit nsk of counterpartes.
13 | Equity Share Capital
a) Authorsed Capital
5,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each 5,000.00 5,000.00
b)  Tssued, subsenbed and paid up capical
2,58.01,008 Equity sharcs of Rs. 10/- each 2,580.10 2,580.10
Terma,/ rights atached to equity shares
13.1 [The company has only one cliss of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares = enntled o one vore per

share. The company declires and pays dividends m Indian ruppes, The dividend proposed by the Board of Dicectors i subject to the approval

of the sharcholders in the ensunng Annual General Meeting,
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14.1

Tn the event of liqudation of the company, the holdess of equity shares will be entitled to receve remaming assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferentul amounts. The distnbution will be in proporation o the nzmber of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

¢)  MNumber of shares issued, subscrbed and fully paid 25801 25801
d)  Number of shares issued, subscnbed and fully paid - -
&) Par value per share 10060 100060
f) Reconciliation of the number shares outstandeng at the beginning and the end of
the reporting period
i Shares outstanding at the beginning of the reportng pernicd 25801 25801
i shares outstanding at the end of the reporting penod 258101 258.01
il Feuity shares capital at the end of the reporting period 258010 258010
Shares in the company held by cach sharcholder holding more than 5 per cent shares specifying the number of shares held
{a) D5 Kulkamni
Mumber of shares 60,00 G000 ]
Percentage 23.26% 23.26%
) H D Kulkarni
Mumber of shares 4506 40,06
Percentage 19.01% 19.01%
(€}  Ashok Parmar
Mumber of shares 3878 \7s
Perceniage 15.05% 15.03%
(d)  Chander Bhatia
Mumber of shares 20,00 20,00
Peecentage 7.75% 7.75%
{e)  Asha Bhatia
Mumber of shares 19.50 19.50
Percentage 7.56% 7.56%
()  Shinish Kulkami
Numtbser of shares 15.20 1520
Percentape 7.56% 756%
The (M-Enm have any shares reserved for issue under optons
Other equity
{a)  Securtes Premuim resesve 382271 B2
()  Debenture redemption reserve 2,007.87 200787
() General reserve 953.70 95370
{d) Retaned camings -9,527.55 -£6,229.72
[Total other equity 24,256.73 27,554.56

Mature and purpose of the reserves
Securities Premium

Companies Act, 2013

Securitics Premum presents shares issued at premium less shase issue expenses. The reserve s utiised in accordance with the provisiosn of

Particulars As at 3lut Mar 2020 | As at 3lst Mar' 2019
Opering Balance 30,822.71 30,82271
Add: Premuum on equity shares issucd . -
Closing Balance 30,822.71 30,822.71
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14.6

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The company has issued redeemable non-convertible debentures. Accordingly, the companses (share Capital and debentures] Rules, 2014 (s
Jamended), require the company to create DRR out of profits of the company available for payment of dividend. DRR is required to be cres
fior an amount which is equal to 25% of the value of debentures issued. The DRR is required to be credited over the life of debentures,

According to the companics (Share capital and debentures) Rules, 2014 (25 amended), & company should on or before the 30th day of Aprl in]
each year, nvest or deposit, a sum which will not be less than fifteen percent of the amount of its debentures maturing during the year ending

on the 35t day of March of the next year. However, the company has been umable to make any such deposit/ mvestment

Particulars As at 3st Mar' 2020 As at st Mar® 2009
Opening Balance 2,007 87 20607 8T
Adid: Additional debenmure redsemed : %
Closing Balance 2,007.87 2,007.87
General Reserves

The Company has transferred a portion of Net Profits of the Company before decliring Dividends to General Reserve pursuant o the earlicr
[provision of The Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer to General Reserve, is nok required under the Companies Act, 2013

Particulars

As at 3=t Mar' 2020

As at st Mar' 2019

Opening Balance
Add Addinons made

05370

053,70

Closing Balance

953,70

953.70

Remined Eamings
Retuncd carings represents the acoumulated losses ¢

hat the Company has ol date.

Particulars

As at 3st Mar' 2020

As at Mat Mar' 2019

Opening Balance
Add: Met profit/{loss) for the year

6,220.72
-3.207.83

-446.81
-5,7H2.92

Closing Balance

-5,527.55

5,229.72

Distribution made and proposed
Cath dividents on equity shares declared and pasd:
Final dividend for the year ended
DOT on fnal dividend
Proposed dividends on Equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended
DDT on final dividend

thereon) as ar 3t March,

Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to appeoval at the annual general mecting and are not recogrased 35 2

fiabiley (ncluding DT

The company has not made any non-cash distabution to its shares holders dunng both the years.
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Mon-current borrowings secured
f3)  Listed secured Redemable Non-convertble Debentures
M Opuonl
() Opoon Il
(M Opton III
(i) Option 1V
&)  Project term loans from banks
{)  ICICI Bank Vedant PTL
(1) Stare Bank of India Dream city PTL
(1) ICICTE Housmg Finance Co Anandghan PTL
{iv) - Syndicare Bank Diream aty FTL
(v} Umion Bank of India Dream City PTL
{vi) Bank of Maharashtra Dream City PTL
{vi) TDBI Bank Dream City PTL
(vii) Vijaya Bank Diream City PTL
(i) Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited
(¢ Corporate term loans from banks
i}  Sangali Urban Cooperative Bank Led
() Tata Capital Lad.
(i) The Kalyan Janata Sahakar Bank
(d) Cooperstive term loans from Financul msttutions
{1} ‘Pajaj Finanace Ltd
) Aditya Birla Finance Lid
(1) STCI Finance Lid
{g)  Vehicle term loans from hanks
M HDFC Bank Ltd.
() Vehicle reemn loans from financial instinution
) Toyota Financal Services Led.
{5} Kotak Maheidea Pame Lid
(g  Term Loanz from Anancil insttutions secured by pledge of promators’ shares
0  Pune Safery Vault LLP
(i)  Ruia Knowledpe & Research Institute Pt Lod
(i) SKS Fncap Pt Lud
Total non-current borrowings secured

Unsecured Borrowings
(a) Deposits from public
) Loan from directors
{e) Loan from sharcholders

Total non-current borrowings

517220 5.172.20
234255 234255
180.41 180.41
3,442.60 344260
1,000,00 1,000.00
12579.81 12,579.81
7.944.50 7,046.22
7,667.00 7,667.00
6,202.86 6,20286
6,20200 6,202.00
4, 72566 4,723.03
2,131.45 1,998.05
5,666.35 5,666.35
205,60 204,69
71353 71353
1,336.72 1,336.72
140331 1,403.31
936.47 936.47
2,689.45 2,689.45
1.25 1.25

7.07 7.0

0,58 0.58
50.00 50,00
35,00 25.00
156,14 156,14
72,960.60 F2621.20 |
200 200
96.34 06,34
6135 61.35
73,120.29 72,986.97

Right to remsue; Subject to :hp-prm"nicn of the Companes Act, 2013 where the company has fully redeemed any NCDs, the Company shall]
have, & shall be deemed always to have had, the nght to keep such NCDs i effect without exunguishment thereol, for the purpose of resale or
re-sue & in exercising such right, the company shall have, & shall be deemed always to have had, the power 1o re-s=ll or re-ssue such NCDs
cither by reselling or re-issuing the same NCDs or by ssng other NCDs, in accordance with the applicable rubes & regulations.

Tnterest on NCD Opaen | 5 assumed 1o be payable quarerly @ 1250%% pa. as that of last year. In the case of MCD holders who are WOImen,
senior citizens, sharcholders, servicemen, ex-sermcemen or DK Group employess & who are the unignal allottees of the NCDs, the rate o]
interest will be mereased by 0.25%. Such additional rate of interest will cease in the event of transfer of the NCDs. The NCDs due to bel

redeemed on 06,/09/2017 have yer not been redeemed.

Interest on MCD Opoon 1 s NIL. The NCDs will be redeemed on 06,/03/2020,

Interest on ML Opoon T11 15 assurned to be payable yeady (@ 12.65% p.a. as that of last year. In the case of NCD holders who are wamen,
senior citieens, sharcholders, servicemen, ex-servicemen or DSK Group emplopess & who are the onginal allottess of the NCDy, the mate of]
miterest will be mereased by 0.25%. Such addinonal rate of interest will cease in the event of transfer of the NCDs. Under this option payment

of pancipal together with intevest accrued on the resschual face value will be paid as under:

Sr [Partial Redemption dates

% to Face Value

1 J6th Scptember, 2016 10.00
2 [oth September, 2017 15.00
3 J6th September, 20118 20,00
4 |6th Seprember, 2019 25.00
3 25.00

Gith September, 2020
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155 |intcrest on NCD Option TV i assumed to be payable monthly @ 12.75% p.a. as that of list year In the cage of NCD holders who sre women,
enior citizens, sharcholders, servieemen, ex-servicemen or DSK Group employces & who are the original allatiees of the NCDs, the rate of]
fintercat will be increased by 0.25%. Such additional rate of interest will cease in the event of transfer of the NCDs. The NCDs will be redeemedt

en 06,00,/ 2021.

15.6 [The primary secunty for State Bank of India Dream City PIL s pani pasu 1t charges by way of registred morgage of specified project
along with present and future structures thereon along with other project term lenders consortium Banking). The collateral secunty i pan pasu
15t charge by way of registered mortgage of specified lind. In addition, the project loan 13 secured by the personal gurantee of Mr. .S Kulkami
& Me. Shirish Kulkarni ‘

15.7 [The Prmary sccunty for the Syndicate Bank (Gold Leaf) PTL is regstered mortgage of sepaified Project and along with present and futur]
structures thereon. Tn addition, the project loan is secured by the pessonal guanniee of Mr. DS Kulkarni & Mr. Sharish kulkrans.

15.8 [The Prmary secunity for Syndicate Bank Dream City PTL is pan pasu 15t charge by way of rejstered mortgage of specified project land along
with present and future structures thereamwith other project teem lenders (Consoreiim Banking). The Collateral secunty i pan pasu 1st charges
by way of registered mongige of specificd land In addinon. the project loan is secured by the personal guarantee of Mr. DS Kulkarni & Mr.
15.9 [The Primary sccunty for Bank of Maharashtra Dream City PTL is pan pasu 1st charges by way of regsteced morngage of speafied project land
along with present and furure structures thereonwith other project teem lenders (Consortum Banking), The Collateral secunity is pan pasu 1st
rchlq;c: by way of registered mortgage of specified land In addition. the project loan secured by the personal guarantee of Mr. DS Kulkarri

Ms. Shirish Kulkaeni &]
15.10 [The pamary secunty for ICICT bank Vedant PTL & regstered mortgage of specified project bind along with present and futwre structuzes

theron. The collateral security is registered mortgage of specified laind along with present & future structures thereon and a charge on the|
receivables of specified projects. In addition, the project loan is secured by the personal gurntee of Mr. D8 Kulkarni 8 Mr. Shinsh Kulkarm.

15.11 [The Primary secunty for the ICICE HFC Lt Arandghan PTL is regastered mortgage of specified Project land along with present and future
pructures thercon The collateral security is registred mortgage of specificd land along with present & furure structure there on arid
hypyothecation of project feceivables. In addition, the project loan is secured by the personal guarantes of Mr. 1.5, Kulkarni, Mr. Shirish
Kulkarni & Mes. H.D Kulkarni, DSK. Global Education and Rescarch Limited is co gurantor to the mune of receivables from the project in Is
of consideration for relinguishing of development nights of part of project land

15.12 [The Primary secanty for IDBI Bank Dream City PTL & pan pasu 15t charges by way of registered mortgage of specified project lind along with
present and future structures thereonwith other project term lenders (Consartium Banking). The Collateral security 15 pan pasa 15t charges by
way of regstered mortgage of speaificd land and hypyothecation of project secavables, In addition, the project boan is secured by the personal
perantee of Mr. DS Kulkarma & M. Shirsh Kolkam:,

15,13 vehicle term loan from Toyota Financial Sesvices is socured by hypothecation of specific vehicles.
15.14 [The vehicle term loan from Kotk Mahmde Prime s secured by hypothecation of specific vehicks.
15.15 [ The vehicle term loan fram HDFC Bank 18 sccured by hypotheeation of ific vehicles.

15,16 [The chairms from the banks have been duly verifed and recorded the balances backed by valid evidences.
15.15 [The loan from Rum Knowledge & Rescarch Institute Prvate Limired is sccured by pledge of 1,50,000 (P. Y. 1,50,000) Equty shares of the
|Company held by the Company's promoters.

15.18 [The loan From Pune Safety Vaul LPP is secured by pledige of 210,000 (P. ¥, 2,10,000) Equity shares of the Company held by the Company's

promotens.
15.19 [The loan from SKS Fincap Pt Lid. 15 secured by pledige of 10,060,000 (P. Y. 10,00,000) Equity sharcs of the Company held by the Company's
PEOTOLETS.
15.20 [The Company has accepted deposits from the shareholders without complymg with the requirements of the Comparies Act, 2013

16 | Deferred tax liabilities (net)
The deferred tax liability compnses the effect of the following:

D'TL resulting from tirmumg difference between book depreciation and tax depreciation 4268 4268
Total Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4268 42.68

17 | Other non-current liabilitics
(a)  Deposits- from subsidiary 25.00 25.00
()  Other deposits BET.0G BHT.94
(¢}  Advance from debtors 1,178.62 1,178.62

Total ather non-current labilities 209157 2,091.57
17.1 [ The deferred tax lability/asset bas not been consadered for the year due to uncertainty of a poing coneern of the business.
17.2 [ Deposits from Subsidiary are not venfied due to lack of confirmatians from the third parties,




13 | Current borrowings secured
Working capital lrmits from banks
1 Bank of Maharashatra 280032 34421
2 The kalyan Janata Sahakasi Bank Ltd. 481.85 481.85
3 Seate Bank of Indua 3,221.95 3,221.95
Total current borrowings secured 6,564.11 6,748.01
Current borrowings secured
Inter corporate deposits
1 Adisun Exports PeeLid 25,00 2500
2 Ambiance Ventures Estate & Dev Pvt Ltd GBX19 G219
3 AMS garments Pyt Led 50.51 50.51
4 Asiatc Gases Limited 28945 28945
5  Bhavnagar Of Mill Py Lid. 15.00 15.00
6  Bombay Mercantile & Leasing Co Led. 200 200
7 Citne Indm Ld. 183.64 18364
§  Fandabad Paper Mill Led 20,00 90.00
¢ Gini Tex Pyt Led. 106,00 106,00
10 Homnest Agencies Pvt Lid 012 012
11 India Ener Gen Py Lid 190,00 190,00
12 Iresco Electricals Pt Led 15,69 15.69
13 N Investment Prt Led 25,00 25,00
14 Metworth Portfolio and Finance Pyt Lud 500 5,00
15 Patodia Forgings and Gears Ltd 27351 27351
16 Patodia Glass ndustries 267.10 26710
17 Rajgarhia Leasing & Financial Services Pt Lad 281.00 28100
13 Rove Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 205,00 205.00
19 Riuna Fabrics Pyt Lad 310 310
20 Sakseria Behta Sugar Factory Lid. 6:5.00 65,00
31 Sakseria Opticles Pyt Ltd. 10,00 10,00
22 Seksari mdustries Pve Lid, 3006001 306.00
23 Shashi Dhawal Hydrobe Pyvi. Lid 10000 10,00
24  Shashi Rag agencies 3200 3200
25 Shn Krshna Rice & Ol Mills Pt Led: 10,0 1,000
26 Sunako Chemo Ind, Pve Lid. 300,98 300.98
37 Tecl Chemicals and hydro Power Ltd 321 32
28  The Sasena Biswan Sugar Factory Lud 386 B
20 Theee Roses Oxygen Pve Lid 40,00 40,00
M Tradelink Exim Pve Lid 7.00 7.00
31 Vibrant Global Capital Ltd 156.44 156.44
Total current borrowings secured 383180 3,831L.80
Current secured 10,395.92 10,579.81
18.1 [The prmary security for the Bank of Maharashtea cash credit it hypothecation of stock and debtors of encumbrance free projects.
collateral security is by way of equitable mortgage of specified present immovable properties. In addison, this cash credit lumit is secured by the
|personal guarantec of Mr. D 5. Kulkami & Mes. H. D. Kulkami and corporate guarantce of Ascent Promaters & Developers P Lid., Growrich
Agro-forestery Pyt Ltd. & Holy Land Agro-forestery Pyt Lid. & Sapphire Promoters & Developers Pyt Lid.
18.2 [The overdralt from Bank of Maharashera is secured by pledge of term deposit receipts.
18.3 [There 1 no pnmary secunty for the Mortgige Overdraft Eimit from Kalyan Janam Sahakan Bank Lid The collateral secunty 1= mgumedl
morigage of certain immovable properties. Tn addition, being a properly owner guarntos & co-appheants for this loan are M/s D S Kulkami
& Cofe D, S, Kulkami & Associates. Personal Guarantee of Sho D, 5 Kulkasmi and Mr, Shirish Kulkarmi.
18.4 Fb( overdraft from Symndicate Bank issmuﬁ!aEEE:uE’an deposit receipts.
18.5 [The overdralt from Punpab National Bank i secured by pledge of term deposit receipts.




I adibton o the above, the {ervar Crodst svailod monom-current asscts i contingent ha

the same shall not be pbtained el pasd o e gevernment authorsry. Kook siaemee

tax peral

18.6 [The primary scounity for die Stiee Bank of Indi progect spealc cath crodin hrnu for developemont & comsrmacton 5 regastered mootggs of land
along with present & furure steucture thereon. Ty addinom, this Wasn 1 scctosd by the pomsonal garinice ol Mre T S Kolkarn & Me 5 D
Kaulkarm.

19 |Trade Payables
{a)  Melaved Parscs 47115 47115
(b} Cxher Partics 4,00205 491669
Total Trade Payables 5.463.20 5,387.84

19.1 | The elams maide by the credinigs have béen dule v crificd and recurded dhe babaces bagkod by valil evidences

19.2 [Trade payables & all labiliticd are nos-mnterest-baaring, wnlos speaicd otherame m the oo

20 |Other Financial Liabilites

{a)  Current maturngs of bng-term dely
() Interest accrued but not doe om Debenmree 5.221.55 3 T64.41
(b}  Unpaid / unchamed public deposis 144750 1L 48T.30
() Interest Payable-subvenmon Scheme 27798 27794
(dy Intercst on FI} puyable 2008.86 208.86
{e} Advinee against nermernits [/ plots 54, 004.78 54,009.78
(i Interest accrued bud tod due on bartowings RB2273 T. 6105
Taotal Other Financial Linbilites T0,028.20 67,500.38

201 [The details of maetgages of the assets held by the Company and the secured NUDs e disclosed above

20.2 [The mterest payable to Lata cipieal Housog Finsnce Led On subvention schime i sccurod by morgee of spealfied land.

21 |Other current liabilitics

{a)  Unclarmed divaderndls 1137 1337
(b)  Staturery habile e [ R A1) 2038064
Toral other current hiabilitics 2,113.98 2,052.01

211 [The balanee of divident] unclamed for FYC 0910 & 10:11 ke oot been transfeeecd 10 TEPI fund as: per the provisons. of Sec 124 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

212 [The stanutory Babilitics have not been paid ll dae aod the same i relied oo e aceountm i reconds mamisied by the management.

Due 1o-dack of login credenimls available, the habshies Gue to the govenmment kave not been yenficd jrspiiy Of vafious representations
22 |Provisions
(o)  Provison for expenscs 1255 186.95
b}  Provimon for ek Lenfirs 05040 95949
(c) Developmént expenscs payable 02241 302241
{d) Income tax provisioms (net 33283 333,34
| Total Provisions 4.507.28 4,502.24

22.1 [Proveions for expenses have been resonded after doly verpfng the choume recerved by vanous creditoes

22.2 Various meome tax refunds are visible o Foom 2608 Bur the same Has not been rocenod by thi: cuampraay. Henee the same 1 assumed to be
achjusted agamst the previous domands outstnding as discloned m the Conmgent habiley:

22.3 ['Fax deducted at source dunmy the yoar for variows CIRP cost mewrecd i been consadered but fow of the Tax Jdoducted has not been pad w the
| povernment upto the date of swming the fnancis. The same has been qualificd m the Audic Repon

23 |Contingent Liabilities noi provided for:

1 | Guaraniee s respoct of sceured Hans obtained by another comy amy [LELELIALY) 10, 000.00

Balance of securcd lipms as at endd of vea B 15279 815279
2 Guaraniee o Guvernment Aathontics Tl 40 TRl
3 Tax Marers uncler appeal 15,119.12 15119.12
4 Cases iled agnnst the company R 150,58
5  Cenvat credit avaled 1216 #1216

Total at the end of ihe reporting period 35,204.35 35,204.35

Mo The'derails of contmgent halulitscs have been sestamed o be samie of provious year ay abgence clany oy dosce

1 e

the ot oF R 10000 00,000 and meome rax liahility o
the exrentof Re 13725, 10,Mi6 s beon disclosed o the extent of the dimme sepened by the resprenve suthontes and lmbility visible on the Income

the Company s inin haguedamon TJ1.|:::-u!.',h MCLT and]




Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended As at Asat

s March 2020 st Masch 2019
{Aunt in Lakhs) {Amt in Lakhs)
24 |Revenue from operations
{a) Revenuve from Company other than a finance company
(1 Sale of lamd & Development aglits
r"]T:u::I Revenue from operations = -

24.1 [As per IND AS 115, the Company has not recognised any revetiue since there i no sansfaction of po riormance obliganons customer
has notobiained contl of the asset in the current vear. The mhpact thereol i negliphil

25 |Other Income

{a) Income from subsidiancs - (35.18
(b} Imterest on fixed doposims with bank 564 1322
(e nher Intercst : 016
{d) Drscount Receved 00 -
{ed  Duvidend Income - (.61
Total at the end of reporing period 5.64 649.17

25.1 [There are cental income and mrerest weome due from the relared parmes of the Company which his not been recopnised with an

HSSIII“F‘I’!‘HI’I ofno CCCTEE B CUrrent Yoir or nay Fl-l!!"l-' ears

25 .2 1Due o lack of Interest smtements avimlable by the manapoment, interest On viecous diposdts wnclching LEI:]:'HI'HIIS from banks have been

recorded based on Fomm 2645

26 |Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

ia) Sub-Contractor's ||.:|:|:].:|.'.-| 2.01

.-

Total Land & / or development expenses = .9

27 |lncrease/{Decrease) in inventorics of finishes tenemenis & wip
(a) Finished tenements
Crpening 1,381.64 138104
Lass : Closimg (1.381.64) (1.381.64)

(b Work-in-progrcss
1.55,540.42 1,55,540.42

Opening
{,55,540.42) (1,55,540.42)

Less : Closing

Total increase,/(Decrease) in imventories of finishes renements & wip -
27.1 |Inspire of vanous sile of fimshed tenements, the same = 0o cecorded due o fack of docimentation or sale value with the

MUNAZEMENL

28 |Employee Benefits cxpenses

(a) Salares, wapes, bonus erc 26,22

26,22

=
Total employee Benofits expenses -
28.1 [There are no employees m the company axs the sad Campany 15 under the process nf CIRP

282 [Directocs have not been paid any rememeranon mthe coment vear with the ficr thar they ane not m a position to work For the

company and receive the sand money.




29 |Office & admin expencsc
(a) Professional expenscs 1229 7.45
b) CIRP Cost 53.08
(€) Trustec fees 1.03
(g} Legal charges T.04 -
(k) Fines of Stock cxchanges - 2699
(g Amountwnticn wff = 41.23
{f}  Ohher admin expenss 017
Total office & admin expencse T0.44 75.84
29.1 [The company being under CIRP process has incurred vatous CIRP retated eost for the COC meenngs held. “The cost incurred has
been approved by the COC members in every mecting held
29.2 [Various penodic expenses have nuot been booked for the derr dud 10 Tick of docwmentanon | deriled evidences for that pedod.
30 |Finance Costs
{a) Ineerest on dopuosirs 8 loass 69896 96259
(b)  Interést oo Brancial mEnns 375 190,78
(¢) Interest to baks 520.50 1,089.55
(dy  Odher inancul expenses 395 0.56
(¢} Intereston [ebentures 1.484.14 1.484.14
Total finance Costs 2,711.30 5,727.62
30,1 [1nterest from vanous banks have boen recorded Based on the loan statomenis avmliblo with the management.
31 |Depeeciation & Amortization expenses
(a) Depredation expenss 51273 509,51
Total depreciation & Amortization espenses 512.73 599,51
32 |Corporate Social Responsibility expenses
I:q} Caroess T |g-l:u|r¢-¢_| 1o bz spent ||||1|.||.g the year
(B)  Amount spent durig the yei
The Company i not digble o spend pan of the amount for the purpose of CSIL as per the provinons of Companies Aet, 2013
Total Corporate Social Responsibility expenses =
33 |Eamings per share(EP5)

Earmings per share i calcubared in secindance with the Ind As 33
Partculars

Proft after tax (in lacs

Weiphted average aumber of Fguity shares

Mominal value of Eguiry <hares

H-asirt ;||:I|.1 Dﬂmu.l CATTIEES |SEr Fl!;.‘u

{3.297.83)
25801
10.00

(5.782.92)
25801
0.0
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0. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.
CIN LAS201PN1991P LC063340

Motes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended

31-Mar-20

34 Related party disclosurcs
Subsidiaries
Step-down subsidiaries

Key management personac]
Relatives of key management personne|

Enterprises owned or significantly mfluenced by key
management personinel o their celatives

B R

o N

Al
41

A Names of related parties where control exists and related pacry eekaponship

DSK Developers Corporasion
5K Tatm Pve. Lad

5K Southern Projects e Lid
DK Wioods LLEC

M. 1) 5 Kulkarni

M Hemann 1 Bulkiom

M. Amit Decpak Kulkaeni

Mirs. Ashwini Sangay Deshpande
M. Bharrashece Aot Kolkarm
e Maksrand 5 Kullaom

Mz Tanw 5 Kulkann

Mir. shirsh Kutkaom

Aambunce Venruees [stares & Developments Pyt Led.

Managing Director

Lot Company

\scent Promaoters & Developers Py Lid.
UChandmdeep Promoders & Devclopers Pvn Lid
(3%, Kulkarnt © onmections e Led
125 otk & Assticuans

13 S K ulkarm & Brothers

D5 Kulkarni & Company

125 Kulkaro & Sons

5K & Aszo

sk &l o

sk Auto Pyt Lad

PYsE Conspructioms

125K & Siins

skl iipl.ld Fechmiodoges 18wt Loed

PSK Eoicrramnment 1L

125K Global Hducnton and Rescarch Lad.
135K Inforech Pye Lk,

15k Millkotromcs Per Lad.

ek Motors Pyr. Tad

5K Motormacks Pyr. Led

sk Momswhecks v Lk

[ 355 Pralshn Crampe L1

175k Balus & Service

15k Shivagans [*ounthrall Club Pye Lad
sk Sruchos Per, Tad

P ek Wodd Edueation Council

5K Worldman Projecrs Ll

Fairdand Promoters 8 Developors Pyt Lid,
Forever Solar Projecrs: Pve. Lad

Ciharkul

Caecenpold Farm<de Honests ot Ll
Cipowrich Aprolborcziny Mo Lk

Flexagon Capital Advisors Pyt I
H.l.ll.:.'l:ll.l.l '&Hfuﬁ sty v Lod.

Rasa Group

Sapphire Promorens & Dievdlopers Py Led.
Shn Saprashriang O Mills Pyt L.
‘Unlisman 1 lospirality Services Py L,
lebezmiel

Fricone Difracon L




D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lid.
CIN LAS201PMN1991P LCOG3340
Motes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31-Mar-20
B Related paety transactions 2019-20 2018-19
BALAMCE SHEET I'TEMS: Rx. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
1 Equity Contribution
Mrs. H. D, Kulkaem 490,59 490,59
Mr. 1. 5. Kolkarm 600.05 GOLO5
Mr. Shirish Kulkarm 152.00 15200
Sub total L242.64 1,242.64
2 Loans and Advances pavable
D5 Kulkarn & Assocatcs 13.692.90 1360290
D § Kulkarni & Company 3T A87.39 3738779
.5 Kulkarnt Construcnons . Pyt Tad 14.43 14.43
DEK Intra Pye. Tl 145.23 145.23
DsSK Worldman Proeors |ad 103.39 103,39
DSE Global Edueaton and Research Lid. 120.26 120.26
DEK Global Educanon & Research- Amandghan Loan 437.16 43716
Mirs, 1, D, Kulkarni 299.24 209.24
Mr. Shirsh  Kulkarn 4894 48.94
Mir. 1. 5. Kulkarni 06,34 06,34
Ambiance Ventures [smies & Developrienss Pyt Lad GE2.19 G6B2.19
Sub votal 53,027.85 53,027.85
3 Deposits payable
13 & Kulkarni & Associaies 0.50 {150
DS Global Educanion and Kescarch L. 25.00 25.00
M. D050 Kulkarm 177 .77
Sub toral 27.27 .27
4 Trade payable
DEK Motors Pye. Lud 643 56,43
DEK Morowheels v 1 155.84 155.84
5K Global Educanon and Researeh Lod. 11275 11275
Talisman Hospitalite v 1d 248 248
Me Shirsh Kulkaoni 22308 22598
Mrs. H [ Kulkarm 35.03 35,03
Telesmell Qo3 003
I3 5 Kulkarnt & Assocmnes 0.22 g.22
Sub total 386,76 586.76
5 Investments at the year end
DSK Developees Compearation 506,50 509.50
Less: Provision for peomanent dimunition in value {309.50) (505 500}
DSK Global Educanon and Bescarch Lad. 7332 7332
DSK Southem Projocts Py Lid 1,400.23 1,400.23
Less: Provision for permanent dimunition in valoe (1,400.23) {1,400.2%
[DSK Infra Pvt Led 200.00 200,00
Sub total 27332 27332
6 Advances receivihle
Trcone Infracon i 469.28 469.28
DSE CGlobal Educarion wnd Hescarch |l 659,70 659.70
Mr. Shirsh Kulkarn 226.22 226.22
Sub total 1,355.19 1,355.19
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D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lid.
CIN LASZ20IPN19IPLCOG3340
Motes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended 31-Mar-20
7 Loans receivable
8K Developens Corpuoranon 6,959.68 6.959.68
DSK Southern Peogects Mt Lad 5,289.40 5, 280.40
Less: Provision for doubful debes (4,713.84) 4.713.84)
Sub total 7,535.24 T7.535.24
8 Deposits receivable
D S Kulkarni & Company 25.00 25.00
Mr Shirtsh [ Eulkorm 14.00 14.00
Mrs. H D Kulkarni 1.50 150
1S Kulkarm & Assocmics 25.00 25.00
DEK Global Edueation & Rescarch Lad 11.03 11.03
Sub total T6.53 76.53

9  Trade receivable

DESK Shivajizns Foorhall Club Pyt Lad .38 0.38
Sub toral 0.38 0.38
10 Guarantees given
%K Global Educanien und Research Lid 10, 000,00 10,0000
Sub tocal 10,000 00 10, 000,00
TOTAL OF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 74,125.19 74,125.19
PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS
1 Interest Income
DSK Developers Corparition 3B3.19
DSK Southern Projeces Py Lod - 25199
635.18

Sub total =

Theres are interest expense due to the related parmies of the Company which has not been secoprsed with an inteation of no

F-J.:.Tru:nr 1N CUETeT VEET (i Aany Future years

TOTAL OF PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS - 635.18

Grand Toral T4,125.19 74,760.37

35 Disclosure for assets taken on lease as per Ind AS17:
The Company has entercd min operting lease acmngements for office space at Puni arndd Mumbian, [here are o futuare minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operting leases as all the lease armngements dee cencellable at the option of lessee. Deils of such

leases are as follows:

Sr.  Landlord Premises From Ta Rent paa (Rs.)
1 Mes H I Eulkarni Pune | M Rd: Office U1-Bep-13 3M-Aug-20 -
2 M 2. Argade Patil Arpade Highes, Pun 11-jan-15 [ 0-Jun-20
Total - =

The above details ace preparcal us per the books vainmimed due 1w lack of lase agrecnicies
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D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.
CIN L45201PN1991PLCO63340

Motes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Logs Statement for the year ended 31-Mar-20

36
i

il ‘The company has given its land (Bavdhan) on operating bease to Nkl Kolkarnd and Coanpany e a period of 02 years woef 15t Ot
Particulars of asset Giross Block as Net Block as Gross Block as Net Block as
Land {Rs. in Lacs) 288 258 258 288
Future minimizm lease payments reeemable i respece of non-cinecllable leases 2019-20 H18-19
s, in Lacs Ks. in Lacs
Annual Rent G.60 .6l
Dhue in the pedod between one year and five years
Drue afver five years
Total
5 “The above rental income las not been reconded i the books with the assampmin oF no recept for the suid income in the current year
g and in future years.
il The Company has subs-leasid e of it leased Mumbai Office as follows
2019-20 2018-19
Sub-lessec Premises Frum To Hent (Rs.) p.a
Hs, in Lacs s, in Lacs
133 Kulkarne & Associatos Mumbai Office (T'art U-Ape-18 3-Mar-19 0 1.67
"The above sub-lease ineome hus not been recorded in the books with the assamption of no reccipt for the said income in the current
. yvear and in future years
37 Additional Information 201920 2019-20 2018-19 20118-19

Disclosure for assets given un lease as per Ind AS 17:

The company has given i< land on operaring lese o s eotwhile subsidiary, SR Global Fdueation & Research Lud for a peniod of 99

years woe. [ 1at July 2008

Paericulars of asset Gross Block us Met Block as Gross Blockas Net Block as
at 31-03-2020 e 31-03-2020  ap 31-03-2019  ar 31-03-2019

Land {Rs_ n ]__1{;:_] 250203 250203 259203 250203
uture minimum lease puyments seeeivable in respect of non-cancelinble loases 2019-20 2018-19
Ry in Lacs Re, in Lacs
Diue within one year from the Balance Sheer dare 8530 85.30
Due in the period berwecn ane year and five years 341.20 341,20
Due after five years TA2L10 TA21.10
Total 7.847.60 7,847.60

‘The above amounts of lease dues For 1 year from the Balance sheet date i kept to be same as that of last year due o lack of dan.

A Expenditure in foreyn currency duang the financial
year on account of
Fereigh Travel
Exhilsitions
Professional and consultation fees
B Farmings in foreign cxchange
Forcigh Travel refund
Inreeest from subsiding




D. 5. Kulkarni Developers Lud.

CIN L45201PN1991PLC0G3340

Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Profitand Loss Stutement for the year ended 31-Mar-20

38 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees & Investments pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 3 read|
with Schedule ¥ of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015:

Maximum outstanding during

Ouistanding as a the yek

31-Mus-20 31-Mur-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Mame of Entity 5. in Lacs Re. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Loans to subsidiacies for business purposc
DSK Developers Corporation A LT 6,959,068 695068 #RER
DEK Southern Projects 1. 1l 5,280,401 5. 28040 5,289.40 HREM
sub-total 12,249.08 12,2408 12,249.08 #RER
Corporite Guarantees fur uther companies against bank loan
35K Global Education & Research Lad 10, 000, D0 R HTRE] 10,0440 (0 100, 000, 0
Investments in gubsidianics for business purpose
DsK I}r_-ll.'c'ln]'p:rﬁ f_:url'_H FELEIEH S50 S50 50950 50050
DSK Infa Pvr. Led. 200,00 200,00 200.00 200.00
DEK Southern Projects Mvr, Lol 140023 14023 1,400.23 1,400.23
sub-total 2,100.73 2,109.73 2,109.73 2,109.73
Invesiments in former subsidiary
DSK Global Fducation & Re=earch Lad 73.32 T332 T332 82.92
Investment by DSKE Developers Corporation (US
subsidiary) in its own subsidiary DSK Woods LLC

1,974.45 1.974.45 1,974.45 1,974.45

39 Additional information reluted to delayed payment by the Company 1w Micro / Small Enterprises as per Section 22 of the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006): This disclosure is voluntary since Ind
AS compliant Schedule 111 is silent about this disclosure.

Sr No Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
fs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
(i} ‘The principal amoun: cemaming ympatd o any supplicr (i detined m 52000 of MEMIED Act, il Mil
2006) as at the end of the scoountmp year
i) The interest due on the principal amount romaining anpaid to any such supplicr as at thy end il il
of the accounting vear
(i) The amounts of payments made to such suppliee beyond the appeoanted day dueing, the Nil Nil
AcCOunting year
{iv) The amount of interest paid by the company i terme of 5 160of MSMED Ace, 2006, daring il Tl
the sccounting year
{¥) The amount of interest due and payable for the perad of delay in making payment withaue Ml il
Id’l.ti.ﬂ].{ the interest specitic Jumdder MEMELD Act, 20066,
{vi) “The amount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid ar the end of the accauntng year Nl Nil
(vii) The amount of further interest due and payable cven in the succecding years until such a day Nl il y

when the intorest dues are actually paid 1o the small enterprise fur the purpose of disallowance
12 0 deductible expenditure w/'s 23 of the MSMED Acr, 20006
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D. 5. Kulkamni Developers Lid.
CIN LA5201PN1991PLCOG3H0

Notes to the Standalone Ind AS Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended

31-Mar-2"

for which an additional provision 1 requined.

this Fund pertaining to |7 200510 0 19 2004-15

As per our audit report of even date.
For R C Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: WI00156

e

Juoisher
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th Oct, 2020

UDIN: 20511 502 0AARAA M1N8]

10 Investments in subsidiaries: In the opimon ol the management, 0o loms 15

42 Thie Company hes not compli dowith the provisions of Sec 185 amd 156 of the Cinpanies et

41 Amounis due to Investor Education & Protection Fund: As at the balanc sheet dare; there

2013

For DS Kutkarni Deviopers Limited

{A comprmy uncler Corpome In wailveng

)

Orpder dared 260 Seprember, 2019)

w

Mr. Muanoj Agarwal

Rgstration ne, IBB /1P A-D0T ST P
[The affares, business and property of

cxpecivil 1o ande i foapoct of mvestments in subsidianics

are amounts doe and cutstanding 1o

Dievlopers Limired

wre Beine menaged by the Wesolution poofessional who act as agent o

the Company only withyur ang

Place: Mumbai
Dare: 10ch Oct, 2020

n

recmal ||;|_I!|I|.1'T‘_h'.'|




